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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain portions of the registrant’s definitive information statement in connection with its 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after December 3 1, 2002 are incorporated by reference into Pari
HI of this report. Other documents incorporated by reference are listed in the Exhibit Index.

(1) The aggregate market value of the voting and nonvoting common equity held by nonaffiliates equals the number of shares of the
registrant's common stock outstanding, reduced by the number of shares of common stock held by officers, directors and stockholders
owning in excess of 10 percent of the registrant's common stock, multiplied by $7.15, the last reported sale price for the registrant's
common stock as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter. The information provided

~~shall in no-way be"construed- as*aﬁ—admission"that-any-ofﬁcer;director-or—l-ﬂpercentstockholder-of-thefegistrant'may-be~decmed—an
affiliate of the registrant or that he or it is the beneficial owner of the shares reported as being held by him or it, and any such inference
is hereby disclaimed. The information provided herein is included solely for record keeping purposes of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. L
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" 1"

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless the context otherwise requires, "we
"NCO Portfolio" refers to NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

us", "our", "Company", "NCPM", or

Forward-Looking Statements

Certaln statements inciuded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”), including, without limitation, statements in Item
i. “Business”, Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” statements as to the
Company's or management's outlook as to financial results in 2003 and beyond, statements as to the effects of the economy on the
Company's business, statements as to the Company's or management's beliefs, expectations or opinions, and all other statements in
this Annual Report, other than historical facts, are forward-looking statements, as such term is defined in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which are intended to be covered by the safe harbors created thereby. Forward-looking statements are

subject-to-risks and uncertainties;-are subject to-change-at-any time, and-may-be affected-by-various-factors-and-risks-that-may-cause—
actual results to differ materially from the expected or planned results. The Company disclaims any intent or obligation to update
forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report. Certain risk factors, including without limitation, risks related to the
current economic condition in the United States, threats of war or futuré terrorist attacks, risks relating to growth and future accounts
receivable purchases, risks related to the Company's debt, risks related to the recoverability of purchased accounts receivable, risks
related to the use of estimates, risks related to the ability to purchase accounts receivable at favorable prices in the open market, risks
related to competition, risks related to regulatory oversight, risks related to the retention of the senior management tearn, risks related
to securitization transactions, risks related to the fluctuation in quarterly results, risks related to the ownership control of the Company
by NCO Group, Inc. (“NCO Group,” “NCOG,” “ or Parent”), risks related to the dependency on NCO Group’s subsidiary for
collections, and other risks described under Item 1. “Business - Investment Considerations," can cause actual results and developments
to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

PART 1
Item 1. Business
General

We were incorporated in Delaware on January 22, 1999 (date of inception) under the name NCO Portfolio Funding, Inc. We changed
our name from NCO Portfolio Funding, Inc. to NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. in February 2001. We purchase and manage
investments in past due accounts receivable from consumer creditors such as banks, finance companies, retailers, hospitals, utilities,
and other-consumer-oriented companies. Our purchased accounts receivable originate from consumers throughout the United States,
Canada and the United Kingdom. On February 20, 2001, Creditrust Corporation ("Creditrust") merged with and into us (the
"Merger"). Included in the statement of income are the results of operations of the assets acquired in the Merger of Creditrust for all
periods beginning February 21, 2001. All of our revenues are derived from our investments in purchased accounts receivable.

NCO Group owns 63.347 percent of our outstanding common stock, based upon the final resolution of substantially all of the disputed
Claimls and administrative costs related to the bankruptcy of Creditrust. As part of the Merger, we entered into a ten-year service
agreement with NCO Financial Systems, Inc. ("NCOF"), a wholly owned subsidiary of NCO Group, to be the provider of collection
semces (with certain exceptions). As part of the agreement, NCO Group has agreed to offer all of its future U.S. accounts receivable
‘urchase : opportunities to us. NCO Group’s affiliates in the United Kingdom and Canada have invited us to invest with them in select
ities to purchase accounts receivable in those countries. The relationship with NCO Group allows us to manage investment
everaging NCO Group's client relationships, experience, analytical databases and scale. We are one of the largest companies,
( Fthe few public companies, in our industry.

ik ot i PRS-

Past duexc onsumer receivables are the unpaid debts of individuals to consumer creditors such as banks, finance companies, retailers,

pinsgi.talsr l;.}tllthS and other consumer-oriented companies. Most of our receivables are VISA(R) and MasterCard(R) credit card

:!}téf\uptsfth‘gat: 5heussumg banks have charged off their books due to non-payment. Since our founding in 1999 through December 31,

] véihave: purchased almost $11 billion of past due consumer accounts receivable for approximately $251 million, and have
) m)ately $248 million from over 4 million accounts. We have also invested in smaller balance past’due consumer

‘as mtlllty and medical debts through our joint venture with IMNV Holdings, LLC (“IMNV™). Our focus is on
LS omour purchased accounts receivable while minimizing our risk of ownership.
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We have twenty wholly-owned subsidiaries which own all of our purchased accownts recetvable, one wholly-owned subsidiary that
employs all of our employees who handle the acquisition, resale, day-to-day oversight and management of our accounts receivable,
and one wholly-owned subsidiary that holds all of our excess cash used for operations, fnvesting and financing activities. Each of our
subsidiaries that owns accounts receivable was established for a specific purpose, including the carry over of the legacy Creditrust
entities, accounts receivable acquired in the ordinary course of business, entities used to secure collateral on notes payable, and entities
that own investments in either a joint venture or limited partnership 1nteresis.

Accounts Receivable Analysis and Acquisition

We are an analytics based purchaser of past due consumer accounts receivable originated through VISA(R), MasterCard(R), private
label credit cards, and consumer loans issued by consumer creditors such as banks, finance companies, retailers, hospitals, utilities,

~ - and- other-consumer-oriented_companies. _We use our proprietary pricing imodels, extensive databases and collection experience to -
evaluate and value purchases of past due accounts receivable. These past due accounts Teceivable typically are charged off by the—- -
credit grantors due to non-payment. We have determined that the average portfolio of accounts receivable has an estimated economic
life of 60 months.

G

We purchase portfolios of past due accounts receivable typically for less than 10 percent of the unpaid balance at the time of charge
off by the credit grantors. Some credit grantors pursue an auction type sales approach by constructing a portfolio of accounts
receivable and seeking bids from specially invited compeiing parties. Other means of purchasing accounts receivable include
privately negotiated direct sales when the credit grantors contact kmown, reputable purchasers and the terms are negotiated. Credit
grantors have also entered into "forward flow" contracis that provide for a credit grantor to sell some or all of its accounts receivable
over a period of time to us on the terms agreed to in a contract.

In 2002, we broadened our acquisition strategy to include larger portfolios. We believe these types of portfolios have elements of
reperforming accounts, and the competition for them is less intensive. We have also partnered with other buyers to bid on larger
portfolios of accounts receivable and have resold purchased accounts receivable at a premiunm immediately after acquisition to
enhance our yields.

Our acquisition team meets with consumer credit grantors and brokers to develop sources of past due consumer accounts receivable

for purchase. Once a portfolio has been located, the acquisition team is responsible for evaluating and determining the appropriate

price to pay for the portfolio. Then they coordinate the due diligence, including site visits as needed, bidding, contract negotiation and

execution. The acquisitions team also coordinates the transfer of information on purchased portfolios into NCOF's collection recovery

software system. We also have staff devoted to post-purchase account verification. The post-purchase liaison group is a group that

verifies buy-backs and returns with sellers after the purchase of accounts receivable. Buy-backs and returns are accounts that are
, returned to the seller because they did not meet the terms of our purchase agreement with the seller, typically due to prior seitlement,
.‘ or the death or bankruptcy of the customer prior to purchase.

In developing our maximum purchase price offer, we use the best available collection statistics available to us from NCOF’s
collection experience on our own portfolios or comparable portfolios and other sources. We develop a target purchase price based on
estimated collections less estimated servicing and other costs that is expected to deliver the desired internal rate of return over five
- years, '

Financing Purchases

- ;Siﬁce the Merger, we have funded our accounts receivable purchases and the expansion of our business through internal cash flows,
* borrowings from NCO Group and the Cargill Financing described below.

ffective with the. Merger, NCO Group amended its credit agreement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania ("Citizens Bank") to
‘_rovlde us w1th 2 lme of credit in the form of a subfac:hty under NCO Group s existing credit fac:hty As of December 31, 2002, our

i 'uct:ons of $3 75 million effective March 31, 2003 until the earlier of the maturity date, currently May 20, 2004, or the date at
wi 'ch the;subfacﬂlty is reduced to $25 million. The outstanding balance on the subfacility as of December 31, 2002 was $36.9

‘August’ 002 ;we cntered into a four-year financing agreement with CFSC Capital Corp. XXXIV (“Cargill Financing,” “Cargill
c1al”) to prov1de ﬁnancmg for larger purchases of accounts recewable arglll Pmanaal at its Qole discretion, has the right to

Qt qthermse be able to purchase, and has no nnmmum or maximum credit aathonzaaon Borrowings under this financing
greement are .nonrecourse to us and NCOG, but are collateralized by the accounts receivable purchased with the Cargill Financing
d :,qss-collaterahzed with all other accounts receivable purchases financed by Cargiil Financial. See “Investment Considerations —~
have. S bstantxal debt, which could have adverse effects on our business.”




Collection Services and Monitoring Resuits

As part of the Merger, we entered into a ten-year service agreement that appointed NCGF as the provider.of our collection services.
Generally, NCOF is paid a comrmission ranging from 20 percent to 40 percent of the collzcted zmetmt depending on the nature of the
accounts. For accounts that do not fit the proscribed fee range i the agresroent, the corm
ranged up to 52 percent. NCO Group has agreed to offer all of its future U. 3
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, servicing fees of $27.5 millio :
We believe that the commission rates paid are reasonable and are consistent vmh rates charged I:v otber eollef‘uon aﬂenc ies for the
same type of services. Our acquisition and finance reams monitor NCGF's tolleeilon process, performance and costs towards meeting
our targeted goals and investment retums. Under the servicing agreement, we may =iect to cufsource sccounts to other agencies on a
test basis. In fact, NCOF has utilized other collection agencies to augment co e,dons and to test its performance as servicer. The cost
of further outsourcing to th1rd party collection agencies is generaily higner. When d,v\ourc ing, the appropriate commission is
determined based on the type of accounts being serviced in conjunction with surrent wmarket rates paid to other coliection agerncies.
Typically, as accounts age, or are further outsourced, the higher the commission rates are on subsequent outsourcing.

ission is based on market ates that have

;

Legal Recovery

We monitor the collection of past due accounts receivable through NCOF's Aitorney Nerwork, which specializes in the pursuit of
consumers with past due obligations who we believe have the financial rescurces to repay their debis but are unwilling to do so.
During 2002, we transferred our in-house attormey and support staff to the NCOF Arorney Network., The NCOF Atiorney Network
processes thousands of court and arbitration cases each year and is responsible for coordinating a network of attorneys nationwide,
determining the suit criteria for each individual jurisdiction, placing cases for immediats suit, obtaining judgment, seizing bank
accounts, and instituting wage garnishments to satisfy judgments. In order to sue or pursue arbitration on accounts, we incur up front
filing fees and court costs.

b

Competition

Our business is highly competitive. We compete with other purchasers of past due consumer accounts receivable, including national
attorney networks, consortiums of buyers, and third-party collection agencies. Successful bids are won based on a combination of
price and relationship. Our ability to obtain new customers is also significantiy affected by the financial services companies that
choose to manage their own past due consumer accounts receivable. Some of those compaiies have substantially greater personnel
and financial resources. The market for past due consumer accounts receivabie has been very competitive at times over the past
several quarters as a result of new purchasers entering the market causing upward price pressures. We have parinered with other
buyers to bid on larger portfolios of accounts receivable and have resold purchased accounts receivable at a premium immediately
after acquisition to enhance our yields.

i Regulati'on

. The aecounts receivable management and collection industry is regulated at both the Federal and state level. The Federal Fair Debt
Collectlon Practices Act regulates any person who regularly collects or attempts to collect, directly or indirectly, consumer debts owed
1or asserted to be owed to another person. The Fair Debt Collection Practices Act establishes specific guidelines and procedures which

tdebt collectors must follow in communicating with consumer debtors, including the time, place and manner of such communications.

) tprohlblts harassment or abuse by debt collectors, including the threat of violence or criminal prosecution, obscene language
eated telephone calls made with the intent to abuse or harass. The Fair Debt Collection Practices Act also places restrictions on

5y

Aun canons with individuals other than consumer debtors in connection with the collection of any consumer debt and sets forth

o

4 spemhcg procedures to be followed when communicating with such third parties for purposes of obtaining location information about

THEY
]

cqg,%l imer.; Additionally, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act contains various notice and disclosure requirements and prohibits

: mlsleadmg representations by debt collectors. We are also subject 1o the Fair Credit Reporting Act, which regulates the
tcredlt reporting industry and which may impose liability on us to the extent that adverse credit miormation reported on a
credit bureau is false or inaccurate. The Federal Trade Commission has the authority to investigate consumer
‘ amst debt collection companies and to recommend enforcement actions and seelk monetary penalties. Other laws and
1'ilm; go{'em the relationship between a customer and a creditor are the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, the Fair Credit

Eaual Credit. Opportunity Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Grahem Leach Bliley Privacy Act, and various
g gul tlons which relate to these acts, as well as comparable statutes in the states where account debtors reside or where

chalt, comply with the
tatutes, NCGF's
siderations — Our

Ex,

, ¢ Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and other Federal regt.lat\ ]
y ‘with such laws and regulations could have a materially adverse effect on us,
f subject to extensive regulation.”

4 ! Iy [
]jé and a condmon of our agreement with NCOF that all collection activi
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:+--+ in‘the economy. They could also result in the deepening of the econoniic recession in u

Emplovees

As of the date of this report, we had 16 full-time eroployees. Nong olo

Available Information

As part of ithe services shared with NCQ Group, we include information =h
www.ncogroap.corm.  {nformation coutained on this website 8 not part of fiyl
NCO Group’s website, our anmuat report on Forrr- }O-K‘, Juart
amendments to those re po S, ulcd or fug r“beu D

Investment Considerations
i OF TESRHS

You should carefully consider the risks described below. If any ;
me rms and

of operations could be materially adversely affected. This Any
uncertamtles Our acrual results could differ matvruhv from thoss &

Decrease in our coliections due to the current economic condition may &
and stock price.

sperating results, revenue

Due to the current economic conditions in the United States, which has lad 1o
bankruptcy filings, the ability of consumers o pay their debts has significantly 4
are generally unsecured, and we may often be unable to collect these loans case o
of increased unemployment rates and bankruptcy filings, our collections m
results of operations, revenue and stock price.

rient and personal

e | Mﬂs that we purchass
upicy of a cousumer. Because
sy adversely ~lnpact oL

Threats of war or future terrorist attacks may negatively impact our results of cperztions, :

Threats of war or actual conflicts involving the United States or its allies, futurs terrovist 2
future events occurring in response or in connection with these threats or i
accounts receivable. Any of these events could cause consumer confidence anc

dsp

could have a material adverse effect on our operating resuits, collections aud reveaue, and may @it in «
for:our common stock.

may not be able to grow our business.

We mtend to expand and rapidly grow our business, which could place great demands o ous ad rative, operational and financisi

,resources Furthermore, we may not be able to finance our continued growih, or o manage it effeciively, which wouid harm our

H

'b iness, results of operations and financial condition, and our ability to mest our debt service obligations. Future growth and

;velopment will depend on numerous factors, including our ability io:

develop and expand relationships with credit grantors;

maintain underwriting criteria in purchasing past due consunes

recruit, train and retain qualified employees;

maintain quality service to customers and credit grautors,

enhance and maintain inforration technology, «




- while adhiering 1o the Fair

We have substantiai de

At December 31, 2002, we
approximately $92.1 mi
a number of adverse efte

$167.8 mitlion, total bt (inclnding certain nonrecourse debt and accounts payable} of
: $66.6 million. This relatively higl level of debt could result in

&

niting aurakiiity 1o obinin necessary fingneing in the future; -

s from operations o pay debt service

rtion or all of our 1 f

e regu 5 gy
obligations rather then for other ;nmas s, such as working capital or purchasing additional portfolios of
consumer accounts receivable;

° limiting our flexibility © rzact to changes in our business and market; and

7 leveraged than some of our competitors, which may place us ai a competitive
=

ificant rise in interest vates would increase inferest expense, which would decrease

Most of our debt is interest rate seusitive. Any sig
net income. Appreximately $53.2 million of debt on our balance shest is nonrecourse to u:\:. The cash flows on assets associated with

some of the debt may be restricted to servicing the nonrecourse debt and mav not be generally available to us.

Collections may not be sufficient to recover the cost of investments in purchased accouits voceivable and support operations.

We purchase past due accounts receivable renerated rrimerily by consumer credit iransactions. These are obligations that the
individual consumer has failed to pay when due. The accounts receivable are purchased from consumer creditors such as banks,
financeé companies, retail merchants, hospitals, utilities, and other consumer-orienied companies. Substantially all of the accounts
receivable consist of account balances that the credit grantor has made numerous attempts to collect, has subsequently deemed
uncollectible, and charged off its books. After purchase, collections on accounts receivable could be reduced by consumer bankruptcy
ﬁlmgs Wthh have been on the rise. The accounts receivable are purchased at a significant disconnt, typically less than 10 percent of
face Value to the amount the customer owes and, althongh we estimate that the recoveries on the accounts receivable-will be in excess
of the.; amount paid for the accounts receivable, actual recoveries on the accounts receivable will vary and may be less than the amount
pec:ed or even the purchase price paid for such accounts. The timing or amounts to be collectzd on those accounts receivable
tibe a sured If cash flows from operations are less than anticipated as a result of cur inability to collect our accounts receivable,
1 not be able to purchase new accounts receivable after we have exhausted the availability under the subfacility, and our future
and proﬁtablhty will be materlally adversely affected. There can be no assurance that our operating performance will be

ecogmzed based on estimates of future collections on portfolios of accounts receivable purchased. Although estimates
n!anh ytlcs, the actual amount collected on portfolios and the timing of those collections will differ from estimates. If
X rtfohos are materially less than estlmated we will be requlred to rer\)rd mma;rment expenses that will reduce
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We miay experience a shoriage of available accounts receivable for purchase at favorable prices.
The availability of portfolios of pasi dus consumer accounts receivable for purchase at favorable prices depends on a number of
factors outside of our contrci, inciuding the continuation of the curent growth trend in consumer debt and competitive factors
affecting potential purchasers and seliers of po*tfo‘iios of accounts receivable. The growth in consumer debt may also be affected by
changes in credit grantors’ underwriting criteria and regulations governing consumer lending. Any slowing of the consumer debt
growth trend could result in less credit being extended by credit grantors. Consequently, fewer delinquent accounts receivable could
be available at prices that we {ind attractive. Tf competitors raise the prices they are willing to pay for portfolios of accounts receivable
above those we wish to pay, we may be unzable to buy the type and quality of past due accounts receivable at prices consistent with our
historic return targets. In addition, we may overpay f for po rf;gl_z_qg_oﬁfﬁ:clehpgl_;e_,j;,ac,c.ounxs. receivable,-which-may-have-a-materially
adverse effect on our finéncial results, ;

We may be unable to compete with other purchasers of past due accounts receivable, which may have an adverse effect on our
financial results.

We face bidding compstition in owr acquisitions of portfolios of past due conswmer accounts receivable. Some of our existing
competitors and potential new competitors may kave greater financial and other resources that allow them to offer higher prices for the
accounts receivable portfolios. New purchasers of such portfolios entering the market also cause upward price pressures. We may not
have the resources or ability to compete successfully with our existing and potential new competitors. To remain competitive, we may
have to increase our bidding prices, which may have an adverse impact on our financial results.

ur operations are subject to extensive regulation,.
O t bject to ext gulat

Federal and state consumer protection and related laws and regulations govern the relationship of a customer and a creditor.
Significant laws include the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, the Fair Credit Billing Act, the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act and the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, and various Federal regulations
which relate to these acts, as well as comparable statutes in the states where account debtors reside or where credit grantors are
located. Some of these laws may apply to our activities. If credit grantors who sell accounts receivable to us fail to comply with these
laws, our ability to collect on those accounts receivable could be limited regardless of any act or omission on our part. Our failure to
comply with these laws may also limit our ability to collect on the accounts receivable and may subject us to fines and disciplinary
actions. It is a condition of our agreement with NCOF that all collection activities by NCOF, on our behalf, comply with the
provisions of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and other Federal regulations, as well as comparable state statutes. NCOF's
failure to comply with such laws and regulations could have a materially adverse effect on us.

Our success depends on our senior management team and if we are net able to retain cur management, it would have a

y‘yq gre‘highly dependent upon the continued services and experience of our senior management team, including Michael J. Barrist,
Chéi'rfnan of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Michael B. Meringolo, Senior Vice President, Acquisitions and

f‘Portfoho Management. We depend on the services of Messrs. Barrist and Meringolo and the other members of our senior
management team to, among other things, successfully implement our business plan, manage exxstmg accounts- receivable portfolios

and ﬁnd negotiate and purchase new consumer accounts receivable portfolios. The loss of service of one or more members of the
semorl management team could have a material adverse effect on us.

AL

“We engage in securltlzatlon transactions that could expose us to risk.

0 the Merger Creditrust completed four securitization transactions, two of which resulted in a gain on sale. We intend only to
" secuntlzatlon transactions that will not qualify as a sale for accounting purposes. Our quarterly and annual financial statements
3 _’tenally affected by future write- downs assoc1ated with changes in the fair value of the residual investment in the one

rvice the account_sxree_exyable included in the secuntlzatlons, then such loss could have a materlal adverse effect on us. A
rvicer could result in lower collections due to re-establishing contact with customers or for other reasons.




We are highly dependent on NCOF’s ability to timely respond to technological changes in telecommunications and computer
systems.

Collections of past due consumer accounts receivable depend on sophisticated telecommunications and computer systems., NCOF’s
ability to use such systems is essential to our competitive position and results of operations. NCOF may not have the adequate
resources necessary to timely adopt technological changes to the telecommunications and computer systems used by it. Such failure
to respond to technological changes may adversely impact our results of operations.

We are highly dependent on NCOF’s telecommunications and computer systems.

As noted above, our business is highly dependent on NCOF’s telecommunications and computer systems. NCOF’s sophlstlc‘ated :\/stems
- could-be -interrupted by natural disasters, power losses, or similar-events. NCOF’s-business als¢ is materially dependent on service
provided by various local and long distance telephone companies. If NCOF’s equipment or systems cease to work or become
unavailable, or if there is any significant interruption in telephone services, NCOF may be prevented from providing collection services to
us. Such interruption of collection services may adversely impact oiir results of operations.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Name -Age Position
Michael J. Barrist.....c..ccveeevneeeennnen. e 42 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President
Joshua GIndin......cccoocrenininirr e 46 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Michael B. Meringolo ........ccovreiciiininnn, 55 Senior Vice President, Acquisitions and Portfolio Management
Richard J. Palmer. ....cccoeevvivivvevcneieveeenn, 51 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Michael J. Barrist, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President. Mr. Barrist has also served as our Chairman of the
Board, President and Chief Executive Officer since February 2001. Mr. Barrist has served as Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer of NCO Group since purchasing that company in 1986. Mr. Barrist was employed by U.S. Healthcare Inc.
from 1984 to 1986, most recently as Vice President of Operations, and was employed by Gross & Company, a certified public
accounting firm, from 1980 through 1984, Mr. Barrist is a Certified Public Accountant.

Joshua Gindin, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. Gindin has served as Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary since February 2001. Mr. Gindin has served as Executive Vice President and General Counsel of NCO Group
since May 1998, Prior to joining NCO Group, Mr. Gindin was a partner in the law firm of Kessler & Gindin since 1995. M. Gindin
has practiced law since 1983 and has represented NCOF since 1986 and NCOG since 1996.

Michael B. Meringolo, Senior Vice President, Acquisitions and Portfolio Management. Mr. Meringolo has served in this capacity
since February 2001. Prior to the Merger, Mr. Meringolo was employed by NCOF in a similar role since September 1997, Previcusly
he was responsible for consumer recoveries and outside agency management at several institutions including Chemical Bank,
American Express and First Union National Bank.

¢ Richard J. Palmer, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Mr, Palmer has served as Senior Vice President,
{.. Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since February 2001. Mr. Palmer was Chief Financial Officer of Creditrust from 1996 10 2001.
From 1983 to 1996, Mr. Palmer served as Chief Financial Officer of, and in various other financial functions for, CRJ, Inc., a national
realiestate investment company with headquarters in Rockville, Maryland. Prior to CRI, Inc., Mr. Palmer was with Grant Thornton
:LI:B from 1976 until 1983 and KPMG Peat Marwick from 1973 to 1976.
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The market price for our commeon stock may be adversely aifected by fluctuations in our quarterly and annual operating
results. -

Because of the nature of our business, our quarterly and annual operating results may tluctuate in the future, which may adversely
effect the market price of our common stock. The reasons our results may fluctuate include:

° the timing and amount of collections on vur accounts receivable;

. timing, quality and prices paid for new purchases of accounts receivable;

. a deé]ine in value of our residual investment in éeéuriﬁéation;

. increases in operating expenses associate‘t-i‘:;'afith the growth of our operations;

. announcements of fluctuations in our, or our competitors’ operating results; and
. general market conditions.

In addition, the stock market in recent years has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated
or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies. These broad fluctuations may adversely effect the market price of our
common stock.

NCOG owns 63.347 percent of our commen stock and controis our affairs.

NCOG owns 63.347 percent of our outstanding voting securities. Accordingly, NCOG can elect all of the directors and approve or
control most other matters presented for approval by our stockholders. Under Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation,
owners of a majority of our outstanding cornmon stock are able to elect all of our directors and approve significant corporate
transactions without the approval of the other stockholders. As a result, NCOG will have the unilateral ability to elect all of our
directors and to control the vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the holders of our common stock, including any privatization
transaction, merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. There can be no assurance that the interests of NCOG
will not conflict with the interests of other stockholders.

1

t

|

g Because of NCOG's control of us, potential conflicts could arise between NCOG and us.
i

" Mr. Barrist, who is the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of NCOG, holds the same positions with us. In

¥ .;addi'ﬁ;on, Mr. Joshua Gindin, the Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of NCOG, also holds the same positions

" with us. These persons may have conflicts of interest with respect to matters concerning us and our relationship with NCOG, and do

)
¥ . . . .
141 i mot devote their full time and attention to our business.

RN

¥

i SETEEY
{We iinvested. jointly with NCOG, through its United Kingdom subsidiary, in a 33.0 million portfolio in the United Kingdom in

December 2002. We plan to invest jointly with them in additional United Kingdom and Canadian portfolios as opportunities arise.

¥ %NCC;),G’Q foreign affiliates source and service such transactions. We have not adopted any formal procedures regarding potential

G nf%lqlcts of interest with NCOG, although any material transaction is subject to review and approval by the independent directors on
lour Audit Committee.
oldre

+
H
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cfepe;’ndent upon NCOF for the collection of our accounts receivable.

Ve entere rl into a servicing agreement with NCOF pursuant to which we have granted to NCOF the exclusive right to service all
4G oﬁiits’;réceivable, subject to limited testing rights, for a period of 10 years. We are materially dependent upon NCOF's efforts
i‘ a,m"nymg agreement-to collect our accounts receivable and able to terminate that agreement only due to NCOF’s default
the! Aereement. Any poor performance under, or breach of, adverse change in or termination of, the servicing agreement by
+omld h?‘j/g'.’é material.adverse effect on our business, assets, financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
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ttem 2. Properties -
Our headquarters facility is located at 1804 Washington Blvd., Department 200, Baltimore, Maryland 21230. We share our
headquarters facility space with NCOF, which is composed of approximately 2,000 square feet in one of NCOF’s collection facilities.
NCOF’s lease on this facility has a term of 12 years expiring January 2015. Office space is included as part of shared services with
NCO Group, which are paid directly to NCO Group.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in legal proceedings from time to time in the ordinary course of business. We believe that none of these legal
proceedings will have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable. ‘j",_

PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Price Range of Common Stock
Our common stock was listed on the Nasdaq National Market on April 4, 2001 under the symbol "NCPM". From February 23, 2001
through April 3, 2001, our common stock was quoted on the “Pink Sheets”. The following table sets forth the high and low prices for
the common stock as reported by the “Pink Sheets” for the period from March 8, 2001 (the date on which information regarding such

prices became publicly available) through April 3, 2001, and the high and low prices for the common stock, as reported by Nasdaq for
the period from April 4, 2001 to December 31, 2001, and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002:

High Low
2001
First Quarter (from March 8, 2001) .....ccccecveriiiriicieereereienerinesesesesse e seevenne $12.25 $ 6.00
SecoNd QUATET .....ocviieiiiieeie et e e er et e en s e s asseveeest e s ae e s b s sneesans 7.90 5.25
Third QUATLET. .....eoveecririicrees i e seer e eseeres s et sae s s st e e snssasesaesrenessesasseenn 8.00 5.00
Fourth QUAIET .......ocveeeiii ettt ettt sttt e s et ee e sareaesee s sasshn b s rnnas 7.40 5.12
2002
First Quarter.......ccoeevvvereniseecennenns tetree et sttt st b sttt s e e seene s $7.13 ~$6.21
Second QUATLET .....ccveoeerriricreeciee e rsies e e ee e s e s st e et e s seasssrtorsrosesraeseanns 7.36 6.21
: THIEG QUATTET ....cveeereereeirtieretere e et es e reesseserarereerassesasssesesessesesaenssesseseesasssenas 7.17 4.85
b Fourth QUATeT ...c..cvoveiiiiiriicceie et tsrce st esesess st e sseesonscasseesacseens 6.29 4.26

: As of March 10, 2003, 57 holders of record held our common stock.

t

- Dividend Policy
o

‘ have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock, and do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common

e foreseeable future. In addition, our line of credit facility restricts the payments of cash dividends without the lender's prior

e currently intend to retain future earnings to finance our operations and fund the growth of our business. Any payment of

ividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon, among other things, our earnings, financial

‘capital requirements, level of indebtedness, contractual restrictions with respect to the payment of dividends and other

hat ourr board of directors deems relevant.

ISR R
i pes sation Plan Information

i

m 12 of this :Annual Report for disclosure regarding our equity compensation plan.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data -

The following table sets forth selected balance sheet information as of December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002, and statement o:
incorme and cash flow data for the period January 22, 1999 (date of inception) to December 31, 1999, and each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2002. The selected financial data for the period January 22, 1999 (date of inception) tc
December 31, 1999 and the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 have been derived from our audited financial statements
The consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and the consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity
and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 are included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The selectec
financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes, and Iterr
7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in this Annual Report. .

L memmmeDe mme e sees - - —— - R ] Foﬁlié;ieﬁ&f
' January 22, 1999
(date of inception) to As of and for the years ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) . December 31, 1999 2000 2001 (4) 2002
Statement of income data:
REVEIUE ... vveeiiecteieeeetiinettras b erneiaes e srenbasssssassorsentsebeassssbesssesransssnssassessenns $ 1,959 $13,151 $ 62,929 $63,379
Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related eXpenses.......covurviernriermsenmnereeenrecsesesseseseensns 180 327 1,624 1,532
Servicing fee EXPenses.......ocvrcreirenircenie et enenes 981 5,741 27,771 35,534
Selling, general, and administrative EXPenses........ccoereerrecrnecriereeniens 57 112 2,017 2,794
AmOrtization EXPeNSe .......cvveevvererenrrensevcenniensores -- - 250 320
Impairment of purchased accounts receivable - -= 2,649 1,935
Total operating costs and eXpenses........covvivrvevmniceiiinicsnieenens 1,218 6,180 34311 42,115
INCOME frOMm OPEIAtIONS.......ccvverrreeirirniercrrieriesestetsie e sesstraeeas 741 6,971 28,618 21,264
Other income (expense):
Interest and other INCOME......coviiiiieiriiiiiie ittt ean - - 531 1,024
INEETESE EXPEIISE c.vvvreeceeriruireeerertrereressesrensarassssssresenesensesesessesessansesnseesensses (253) (1.334) (8.230) (8.224)
Total other expense (253) (1.334) (7.699) (7,200)
Income before inCome tax EXPENSE.......cevivercerermirirrmreeent e 488 5,637 20,919 14,064
INCOMIE {AX EXPEIISE .oenrreeeeeernimeercieaeaererneseeeeses eressconeraensenesesneaeessaiecneseaunns 183 2,114 7.845 5,269
Income from operations before minority interest...........c.oovvecnerniiiiiicnnens 305 3,523 13,074 8,795
MINOTIY ITETESE .. c.cuiueeeririeei et crc st et ser st s = - -- (15)
INEE ITCOMIE - vvevrieriniescaareiasesessessaes e st e raasesassotesessresrasansensaneesesenrseneasearans _$305 $3,523 13,074 $8,780
Basic net income per common Share ... $0.04 $041 $1.02 $0.65
Diluted net income per common share ..........ecoovveinennan $0.04 $0.41 $1.02 50.65
‘, Weighted average number of basic shares outstanding ........ 8,599 8,599 12,871 — 13,576
Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding 8,599 8,599 12,871 13,577
o Other data: '
il© - Revenue as a percentage of collections (1)..ccceiiicinicininiccniinans 48.2% 74.2% 60.5% 52.0%
“ Collections on managed accounts receivable (2)......coccomecenrieennirerconnens $ 4,064 $17,716 $ 104,080 $ 121,806
i Collections applied to principal of managed accounts '
l CTECEIVADIE (3) curernrceeeecerecsiise ettt es et et 2,105 4,565 41,151 58,427
wi Cash flows provided by (used in):
{ o 928 7,840 23,032 16,496
(4,694) (27,452) (25,067) (14,029)
3,766 19,612 8,544 (2,588)
0% 0% 4.2% 3.9%
S EQUIVALENAS . covveeo oo eenses s - - 6,509 6,388
4cmunts receivable 4,694 31,480 136,339 148,968
3,765 23,377 - 92,509 92,144
306 3,829 57,864 66,637
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1) Revenue as a percentage of collections is presented because we rely on this indicator in the management of our business as a
key measure of our overall return on investment on purchased accounts receivable.

)] Managed accounts receivable includes purchased accounts receivable that we own and accounts receivable that we invest in
but do not own, including purchased accounts receivable in our investment in securitization, SPV 98-2, but excluding
purchased accounts receivable of our joint venture with IMNV. '

(3) Collections applied to principal of managed accounts receivable is calculated by subtracting revenue recognized from
collections on managed accounts receivable. Collections applied to principal of owned purchased accounts receivable
amounted to $4,565, $34,159, and $53,819 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

'(4) The information presented as of and for the year ended December 31 2001 includes the results of the Merger from February
21, 2001 to December 31, 2001, and is not comparable to 200() and 2002.

»
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Ttem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Qverview

We are an analvtics-based purchaser and manager of past due consumer accounts receivable. Past due accounts receivable are the
unpaid debts of individuals to consumer creditors such as banks, finance companies, retail merchants, hospitals, utilities, and other
consumer-oriented companies. We use our proprietary pricing models and extensive analytical databases to evaluate and value
accounts receivable purchases. Most of our accounts receivable are VISA(R) and MasterCard(R) credit card accounts that the issuing
banks have charged off their books for non-payment. By selling past due accounts receivable to us, credit grantors recover some of
their charged off accounts. - -

On February 20, 2001, Creditrust merged with and into us, at which time we became a publicly traded company. The Merger was
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. As a result of the Merger, we issued 4,977,482 shares of common stock
resulting in a total of 13,576,519 shares of our common stock oytstanding, including 291,732 shares held in escrow. In 2002, the
291,732 shares held in escrow were distributed to eligible stockholders upon the final resolution of certain disputed and administrative
claims. The purchase price was valued at approximately $25 million. Additional acquisition related costs incurred in connection with
the Merger were $4.2 million. We allocated the purchase price based on the fair value of the net assets acquired, principally to
purchased accounts receivable, deferred tax asset and certain assumed liabilities. The net deferred tax asset of $14.4 million was the
result of the combination of 2 significant net operating loss carryforward acquired in the Merger, offset by deferred tax liabilities
arising from book tax differences in the carrying value of the acquired accounts receivable. The purchase price allocation and
determination of certain income tax valuations estimated at the Merger date have been finalized and are reflected in the financial
statements as of December 31, 2001 and 2002.

From our inception in 1999, we have invested $251.4 million ($6.8 million in 1999, $31.4 million in 2000, $141.7 million in 2001
including $93.5 millien from the Merger, and $71.5 million in 2002) in past due consumer accounts receivable. At December 31,
2002, we managed over 4 millicn accounts with an original charged off amount of almost $11 billion measured as the amount charged
off by the credit grantors that originated the charged off VISA(R), MasterCard(R), private label credit cards and consumer loan
accounts at the date of charge off.

The following table illustrates our revenue and collection experience for the periods indicated (Amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 (4 2002
REVENUEC ....eietiree ettt et rae st r e s ea s e s saese s e e eea b e $ 13,151 $ 62,929 $ 63,379
Revenue as a percentage of collections (1)......cccooviivnimniimmincic 74.2% —60.5% 52.0%
Collections on managed accounts receivable (2).......cocvnmiininiiniccinnniins 517,716 $ 104,080 $121,806
Collections applied to principal on managed accounts receivable (3)............. $ 4,565 $ 41,151 ~ § 58427

Revenue as a percentage of collections is presented because we rely on this indicator in the management of our
" business as a key measure of our overall return on investment on purchased accounts receivable.

Managed accounts receivable include purchased accounts receivable that we own and accounts receivable that we
invest in but do not own, including purchased accounts receivable in our investment in securitization, SPV 98-2, but
excluding purchased accounts receivable of our joint venture with IMNV.

Collections applied to principal of managed accounts receivable is calculated by subtracting revenue recognized from
. collections on managed accounts receivable. Collections applied to principal of owned purchased accounts receivable
- amounted to $4,565, $34,159, and $53,819 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

"7'The information presented for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes the results of the Merger from February 21,

- 2001 to December 31, 2001, and is not comparable to 2000 and 2002.

£




Critical Accounting Policies
General

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the
accompanying notes. Actual results will differ from those estimates. We believe the following accounting policies include the
estimates that are the most critical and could have the most potential impact on our results of operations. For further discussion of
other significant accounting pelicies, see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company - Note B.

Purchased Accounts Receivable

~TWe account for our investent inpurchaséd accounts receivable ofi an accrial basis under the guidance of the Anefican Instifite of

Certified Public Accountants’ Practice Bulletin 6, "Amortization of Discounts on Certain Acquired Loans," using unique and
exclusive portfolios. Portfolios are established with accounts having similar attributes. Typically, each portfolio consists of an
individual acquisition of accounts that are initially recorded at cost. Once a portfolio is established, the accounts in the portfolio are
not changed. Proceeds from the sale of accounts and return of accounts within a portfolio are accounted for as collections in that
portfolio. The discount between the cost of each portfolio and the face value of the portfolio is not recorded since we expect to collect
a relatively small percentage of each portfolio's face value.

Collections on the portfolios are allocated to revenue and principal reduction based on the estimated internal rate of return ("IRR") for
each portfolio. The IRR for each portfolio is derived based on the expected monthly collections over the estimated economic life of
each portfolio (generally five years, based on our collection experience), compared to the original purchase price. Revenue on
purchased accounts receivable is recorded monthly based on applying each portfolio's effective IRR to each portfolio's monthly
opening carrying value (effective interest method). To the extent collections exceed the revenue, the carrying value is reduced and the
reduction is recorded as collections are applied to principal. Because the IRR reflects estimated collections for the entire economic
life of the portfolio, and those collections are not constant, lower collection rates, typically in the early months of ownership, can
result in a situation where the actual collections are less than the revenue accrual. In this situation, the carrying value of the portfolio
may be increased by the difference between the revenue accrual and collections.

To the extent actual collections differ from the estimate of collections, we prospectively adjust the IRR. If the carrying value of a
particular portfolio exceeds its expected future collections, a charge to income would be reccgnized in the amount of such impairment.
Additional impairments on previously impaired portfolios may occur if the current estimates of future collections are less than the
current carrying value recorded. After the impairment of a portfolio, all collecticns are recorded as a return of capital and no income
is recorded on that portfolio until the full carrying value of the portfolio has been recovered. For the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2002, impairments of $2.6 million and $1.9 million, respectively, were recorded as a cherge to income on portfolios where the
carrying amounts exceeded the expected future cash flows. No income will be recognized on these portfolios until the carrying values
have been fully recovered. The combined carrying values on these impaired portfolios aggregated approximately $5.7 million, or 4.2
percent, and $5.8 million, or 3.9 percent, of purchased accounts receivable, as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, réspectively,
representing their net realizable value. There were no impairments recorded in 2000.

Use of Estimates

In the ordinary course of accounting for purchased accounts receivable, estimates have been made by management as to the amount of
future cash flows expected from each portfolio. The estimated future cash flow of each portfolio is used to compute the IRR for the
portfoho The IRR is used to allocate collections between revenue and amortization of the carrying values of the purchased accounts

’ regc_:,e}vable

[
Oilian ‘ong’oing basis, we compare the historical trends of each portfolio to projected collections. Projected Collections are then
3, €ase; W]thm preset limits, or decreased based on the actual cumulative performance of each portfolio. We review each portfolio’s
jadj usted pro;ccted collections to determine if further downward adjustment is warranted. Management regularly reviews the trends in
{ddl ectloln patterns and uses its best efforts to improve under-performing portfolios. However, actual results will differ from these
nnatcs and d a material change in these estimates could occur within one year. For the year ended December 31, 2001, differences
en’ a tual and estimated collections on existing portfolios as of the beginning of 2001 resulted in a reduction in revenue, net of
nat d‘ emcmg costs and impairment expense, of $2.5 million. For the year ended December 31, 2002, differences between actual
sHm ﬁed ?ollectlons oh existing portfolios as of the beginning of 2002 resulted in a reduction in revenue, net of estimated
g 45?3 and 1mpa1rment expense, of $7.5 million,

Hoe
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Cargill Financing: -

Our Cargill Financing carries both a conventional coupon rate of interest and a residual share of collections, net-of servicing fees, fo
the life of each portfolio tinanced. We account for this deferred interest expense throughout the life of the receivables financed b;
accruing interest equal to Cargill Financial’s share of book net income on each portfolio financed.

Investments in debt and equity securities

We acquired an investment in securitization in connection with the Merger. The investment in securitization, SPV 98-2, qualified as ¢
bale under generally accepied accounting principles in 1998 when the securitization was completed The investment in securitizatior
s accounted for under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No. 115, “ Accounting for Certain Investmen'ﬁ
- --in-Debt and Equity Securities;” asa debt security held available-for-sale. This investment accrues income as a noncash item includec
in the statement of income as other income, and in the balance sheet as a component of the fair value of the investment ir
sscuritization. Once the securitization note is retired, recoveries will be applied to reduce the carrying value of the investment it
securitization. We record our investment in securitization at fair'value and any unrealized gain or loss, net of the related tax effect
generally is not reflected in earnings but is recorded as a separate component of stockholders' equity until realized. As of Decembe
31, 2002, the carrying value approximated fair value. A decline in the value of the investment in securitization below cost that i
deemed other than temporary would be charged to income as an impairment and result in the establishment of a new cost basis for the
security. No impairments were recorded in 2001 and 2002.

Income Taxes

Income taxes or tax benefits have been provided in the results of operations based on the statutory Federal and state rates at 37.5
percent of pre-tax income. For financial reporting purposes, revenue is recognized over the life of the portfolio. Because the
portfolios of purchased accounts receivable are comprised of distressed debt and collection results are not guaranteed until received,
for tax purposes, any gain on a particular portfolio is deferred until the full cost of the portfolio is recovered (cost recovery method).
Temporary differences arise due to the differences in revenue recognition methods. Permanent differences between the statutory tax
rates and actual rates are minimal. Temporary differences arising from the recognition of revenue on purchased accounts receivable
have resulted in deferred tax liabilities. Assumed utilization of net operating losses acquired in the Merger have resulted in deferred
tax assets. Our deferred tax liabilities grew significantly through 2002 as a result of the increase in purchased accounts receivable,
providing us with additional liquidity. As of December 31, 2002, the net deferred tax liability of $4.3 million was the result of the
combination of deferred tax assets generated principally by the assumed utilization of net operating loss carryforwards from the
Merger, offset by the deferred tax liabilities arising from book tax differences on purchased accounts receivable, including the
purchased accounts receivable acquired in the Merger. The utilization of net operating loss carryforwards is an estimate based on a
number of factors beyond our contrel, including the level of taxable income available from successful operations in the future. The
utilization of net operating losses acquired in the Merger has been further impacted by Federal tax law provisions that limit the amount
of net operating loss carryforwards that can be utilized subsequent to a change in control.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain data from the statement of income on an historical basis, each as a percentage of revenue:

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 (1) 2002

REVEMUE......oiviiiiiiiiitiiiic s s reeesaes s e ar e s e reresnesana e sasobesans 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Operating costs and expenses:

Payroll and related eXPenses..........c...oceuerveirverrenressnssersinssnsanns 25 2.6 24

e o - SETVICING fEE EXPENSES.....couerirnenrerenierrrerneeserererssereresenanereranone = o= <437 44 ] 560 e e e

Selling, general, and administrative expenses. ...........ccoverennnn. 0.8 3.2 4.4

AmOrtiZation EXPENSE......cccverreeereesierarerarraraesiversuosasssessressiessenes o - 04 0.5

Impairment of purchased accounts receivable. .........c.cconene... % _ - 4.2 3.1
Total operating costs and EXPENSES ..........cecrereeverrmerereencererescrnnenens _47.0 545 66.4
Income from OPErations ........cccceevereererveriirernsersenueseercreeresssessessenes 53.0 455 33.6
Other income (expense):

Interest and other income. .......c.cornrivrivnrierenenns SRR -- 0.8 1.6

Interest EXPense. .. .co.coverreereerereesserereerencrrenerns vt 10.1 (13.1) (13.0)
Total Other EXPENSE. ..cvuirnirerrcsirne it 10.1 123 il14
Income before inCOME tax EXPENSE ....ovvverrireinirnirinnrerissessiseinnn: 429 332 22.2
INCOME taX EXPENSE ..coevireireiieeeier et eeece e tasses e eeeeese s e assesaseras 16.1 125 _ 83
Income from operations before minority interest ............cccoccrernnee 26.8 20.7 13.9
MINOTItY IMEETESt. .. .coieiriireirersreriererersressesiecssesesnessessrraresssessessarossns - - -
NET INCOMNE .evverentssrisststreresoronsisreer et soesesestessessnersnessssserssussresssanes 26.8% 20 20.7% 13.9%

(1) The information presented for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes the results of the Merger from February 21, 2001
to December 31, 2001, and is not comparable to 2000 and 2002.




Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

For comparison purposes, the year ended December 31, 2001 includes the results of operations for Creditrust from Febraary 21, 2001
through December 31, 2001.

Revenue. Total revenue increased by $450,000, or 0.7 percent, from $62.9 million for the year ended Decercber 31, 2001 to $63.¢
million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Collections on managed purchased accounts receivable increased $17.7 mullion, o
17.0 percent, from $104.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $121.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 ac
the total amount of purchased accounts receivable under management grew from $136.3 million in 2001 to $149.0 mullion in 2002
Total purchases were $48.2 million in 2001 versus $71.5 million in 2002. Included in collections for the year ended Decenber 31
2002, was $3.7 million in proceeds from the sales of accounts, of which $1.7 million was received as a payment on the sale of certair
nonperforming accounts to a leading credit card issuer. Additionally, during 2002, we toncluded a contract renegotiation with ths

- seller of several existing portfolios Tesulting ifi a $4 milliofi "¢ash price reduction on purchases from 2000 and 2001. The $4 mullior

proceeds were recorded as an adjustment to purchase price of the affected portfolios. On several previously impaired portfolios, ths
cash price reduction reduced the carrying value of such portfolios, resulting in the cost of certain of the portfolios becoming fully
recovered. Included in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2002, was $803,000 that resulted from the contract price reduction o
these fully recovered portfolios.

Actual collection results have differed from estimated projections. For the year ended December 31, 2002, differences between actua.
and estimated collections on existing portfolios as of the beginning of 2002 resulted in a reduction in revenue, net of estimatec
servicing costs and impairment expense, of $7.5 million.

Revenue as a percentage of collections was 60 percent and 52 percent for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively,
Revenue as a percentage of collections can fluctuate period over period due to a number of factors including:

(i) the relative under- or over-achievement of actual collections versus the established estimates. Actual collections
exceeding estimates will tend to lower the percentage because revenue is not impacted at the same rate as the change in collections
due to the effective interest method of computing revenue, and conversely, not meeting collection estimates will tend to increase the
percentage;

(ii) the differences in the composition of portfolios at a point in time in their life cycle. Over the life cycle of 2
portfolio, the percentage will fluctuate due to the variable collection stream. However, in the aggregate, the percentage of collections
recognized as revenue should approximate the lifetime profit, before servicing costs, recognized and the remainder is amortized as 2
return of capital;

(iii) the composition of the targeted IRRs present in all of the portfolios combined. Fresher purchased accounts
receivable (portfolios with few or no placements to collection agencies prior to purchase) generally have lower IRRs than purchased
accounts receivable that have been placed with multiple collection agencies prior to purchase. Fresher accourts receivable typically
cost more. However, net of servicing fees, lower IRRs are offset by lower costs to collect, resulting in similar targeted net returns;

(iv) collection trends will increase or decrease our expected IRR. Increases or decreases in collections bave the
effect of raising (within specified parameters) or lowering the future collection projections on all portfolios, which translates intc
higher or lower IRRs, and in turn, affects the percentage of collections recognized as revenue, and finally;

(v) portfolios that become impaired are placed on cost recovery, and no revenue will be recorded until their carrying
value has been fully recovered. After the carrying value has been fully recovered, all collections are recorded as revenue.

Revenue as a percentage of collections declined in 2002 versus 2001 due to a number of these factors. First, the total composition of
purchased accounts receivable has changed somewhat from 2001. Purchased accounts receivable acquired in, and subsequent to, the
Merger were acquired at a lower IRR compared to accounts receivable purchased in prior years. Purchases of accounts receivable

" made in the latter half of 2001 and continuing through 2002 have returns that were targeted lower at the time of acquisition due to

educed collection estimates due to the tougher economic climate facing us. in the near term, and due to larger purchases with
components of reperforming accounts (past due accounts that are now performing). Second, the overall percentage was lowered due
low. down in collections on existing portfolios as a result of the continued softening economic climate in 2002. Shortfalls in
t périod collection estimates had the effect of lowering the future projections on most older portfolios, which translated to lower
d revenue compared to collections in the current period. Third, proceeds from sales of accouiits totaling $3.7 million are
ud m collections and had a marginal impact on revenue as the rate at which revenue is recognized period-to-period is not
i th? same rate as changes in collections due to the effective interest method of computing revenue. Finally, porifolios with
: *giiilic):n-inlcarrying value, or 3.9 percent of total purchased accounts receivable, as of December 31, 2002 have been impaired and
__énz %:ost recovery’status. Accordingly, no revenue was recorded on these portfolios after their impairment. All of these factors
a lower ratio of revenue to collections.
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Payroll and related expenses. Payroll and related expenses decreased $100,000, or 6.3 percent, from $1.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 to $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Payroll and related expenses remain a small part of the
business model as a percentage of revenue because our collection activities and many administrative functions are outsourced to
NCOF. The decrease in payroll and related expenses was principally due to the legal recovery and agency outsourcing groups being
transferred to the NCOF attorney network durmg 2002, as well as a decrease in overall incentive compensation in 2002 compared to
2001.

Servicing fee expenses. Servicing fee expenses increased $7.7 million, or 27.7 percent, from $27.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 to $35.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, Servicing fees are paid as a commission on collections
and include contingency legal fees. Servicing fee expenses are impacted by the volume of collections on purchased accounts
receivable and the type of accounts receivable acquired, which effects the servicing fee rates charged by NCOF. Servicing fees paid

" "as a percentage of collections were 26.7 percent and 29.1 percent for the years-ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 respectively. ~

Substantially all servicing fees were paid to NCOF for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002. Included in servicing fees for
the year ended December 31, 2002 was $170,000 in servicing fees pald on 31.7 million in sale proceeds received from the sale of
nonperforming accounts to a leading credit card issuer. The increasé in servicing fees as a percentage of collections from 2001 to
2002 was principally attributable to the change in the composition of accounts receivable under management. In general, the accounts
receivable acquired in the Merger have lower servicing fees as compared to accounts receivable purchased since the Merger because
collections were more predictable as a result of Creditrust’s experience with these portfolios and had a component of re-performing
accounts. We expect that servicing fees as a percentage of collections will increase in the future as collections from accounts
receivable acquired in the Merger decline in proportion to total collections. Further, NCOF has and may continue to outsource
collections in an attempt to offSet negative economic trends, to test itself, and generally to augment resources. The servicing cost to us
resulting from outsourcing is generally higher-on such accounts since they are relatively more difficult to resolve.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $800,000, or 40 percent, from
$2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Selling, general and
administrative expenses consist primarily of filing fees and court costs associated with legal collections, insurance, professional fees,
trustee fees, and office expenses. The increase was principally attributable to increased court costs associated with legal collections,
professional fees associated with operational compliance activities, and postage in connection with mailings required by the Graham
Leach Bliley Privacy Act. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002, have been reduced by
$340,000 relating to the reduction of certain estimated Merger related liabilities as finally determined from the closure of Creditrust’s
Chapter 11 bankruptcy, in the fourth quarter.

Impairment of purchased accounts receivable. During 2002, we recorded an impairment of $1.9 million, compared to $2.6 million in
2001. The combined remaining carrying value on impaired portfolios aggregated $5.8 million, or 3.9 percent of total purchased
accounts receivable, as of December 31, 2002, compared to $5.7 million, or 4.2 percent of total purchased accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2001. Impairments have occurred principally on older portfolios purchased prior to the Merger at somewhat higher
prices and with original projections predicated on higher collection rates experienced historically under better economic
circumstances. The decline in impairment experience is principally due to most of these earlier purchases becoming impaired in 2001.
Further, by adjusting under performing portfolios downward by each portfolio’s historical trend, the remaining collection estimates are
O red and the likelihood of additional impairments is reduced.
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Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000

Revenue. Total revenue increased by $49.7 million, or 378.5 percent, from $13.2 miilion for the year ended December 31, 2000 to
$62.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in revenue was attributable to the purchase of $141.7 million in
accounts receivable, consisting of $93.5 million of accounts receivable acquired in our merger with Creditrust, and an additional $48.2
million in accounts receivable purchased in 2001 through normal operations. The carrying value of the purchased accounts receivable
increased significantly over the prior year. Collections on purchased accounts receivable increased from $17.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000 to $104.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 due tc the increase in purchased accounts
receivable. Revenue as a percentage of collectlons was 74 percent and 60 percent for the years ended December 31 2000 and 2001,
respectwely

Revenue as a percentage of collections for the year ended December 31, 2001, declined principally due to changes in the mix of
purchased accounts receivable in 2001 versus 2000. Purchased ‘accounts receivable acquired in the Merger were acquired at a lower
IRR compared to accounts receivable purchased in prior years. Net after servicing costs, these purchased accounts receivable are
expected to equal or exceed our usual targeted net returns. Further affecting the lower percentage for 2001 were current acquisitions
that had returns that were targeted lower at the time of acquisition due to the tougher economic ciimate facing us in the near term.
Finally, the overall percentage was lowered due to a slow down in collections due to the softening economic climate in the first three
quarters of 2001, accelerated by the events of September 11.

Actual collection results have differed from estimated projections. . For the year ended December 31, 2001, differences between actual
and estimated collections on existing portfolios as of the beginning of 2001, resuited in a reduction of revenue, net of estimated
servicing costs and impairment expense, of $2.5 million

Portfolios with $5.7 million in carrying value, or 4.2 percent of purchased accounts receivable, as of December 31, 2001 were
impaired during 2001 and placed on cost recovery. Accordingly, no revenue was recorded on these portfolios after their impairment,
equating to a lower ratio of revenue to collections. See impairment of purchased accounts receivable below.

Payroll and related expenses. Payroll and related expenses increased from $327,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000 to $1.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase was attributable to an increase in personnel during the first quarter of
2001 directly related to the Merger. Payroll and related expenses after the Merger increased as more staffing was implemented for us
to operate as an independent public company and to manage a significant increase in purchased accounts receivable due to the Merger
and internal growth.

Servicing fee expenses. Servicing fee expenses increased $22.1 million, or 383.7 percent, from $5.7 million for the year ended

December 31, 2000 to $27.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in servicing fee expenses is directly

attributable to the increase in collections on purchased accounts receivable. Servicing fees paid as a percentage of collections were

32.4 percent and 26.7 percent for the years efided December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in servicing fees as a

percentage of collections was principally attributable to the lower serving fees paid in connection with the purchased accounts
- receivable acquired in the Merger. Though the mix of accounts acquired in the Merger were generally older and had been through
"imil'tiple placements (compared to current purchases) collections were more predictable as a result of Creditrust’s experience with
mcrease in the future as collections from accounts receivable acquued in the Merger decline in proportion to total collections. Further,
NC f)F has and may continue to outsource collections in an attempt to offset negative economic trends, to test itself, and generally to
: ﬂent resources. , The servicing cost to us resulting from outsourcing is generally higher on such accounts since they are relatively
oré difficult to resplve

é”fl eneral and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from $112,000 for the year ended
Lpecember 31, 2000 to $2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist
i P rily; of filing f es and court costs associated with legal collections, insurance, professional fees, trustee fees, and office expenses.
ﬁ Fifucrease was tmbutable to costs incurred in connection with being an independent public company, and outside collection costs
 itlidiated to the accoums recelvable acquired in the Merger.

hased Eaccounts receivable. During 2001, we recorded an impairment of $2.6 million. The combined remaining
'mpau‘cd portfolios aggregated $5.7 million, or 4.2 percent of purchased accounts receivable, as of December 31,
. '_“m nts were recorded in 2000. Impairments have occurred principally on elder portfolios purchased prior to the
§0 _ldwhat hlgher pnces and with original projections predicated on higher collection rates experienced historically under

,1(: czrcumstances
- ‘
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*, . percent at December 31, 2002), or the London InterBank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus a margin ranging from 1.25 percent tc 2.
" percent depending on NCO Group's consolidated funded debt to EBITDA ratio (LIBOR was 1.38 perceni at December 21, 2002). A
. of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the outstanding balance under the subfacility was $47.1 million and $36.9 miilion, respectively.
iTotal availability under the subfacility as of December 31, 2002 was $3.1 million.

Other income (expense). Other income (expense} consisted principally of interest expense and ‘F‘wcr“aseaf_ g
percent, from $1.3 nmhon for the year ended Decembe‘ 3§, 2000 w0 $z 7 million for the e vrr~r~" W)

~

with the Merger, as well as increased borrowings from NCO Group to ﬁmd the purchase of ac ﬂoums recsivabie i 20 ui ﬂcmdfa in

other income is $329,000 of income from two unconsolidated subsidiaries.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense was recorded at 37.5 percent of pre-tax income for the vears ended December 31,
2001. Tax payments in 2000 were deferred due to the book tax difference of accouniing for purchased accounts 2
accrual basis for GAAP and the cost recovery basis for tax repoiting. Prior to the Merger, we were included in the consolidated tax
return of NCO Group. We received a tax sharing payment of $601,000 from NCO Group for tax losses incurred during the period
prlor to the Merger -

qumdlty and Capltal Resources

Historically, we derived all of our cash flow from collections on puréhased accounts receivable and borrowings from NCO Group.
Effective with the Merger, we entered into a credit agreement with NCC Group in the form of a subf'aciiiw under ity existing credit
facility. Borrowings under the subfacility have been used primarily for the purchase of accounts receivabie, the Merger and working
capital to support our growth.

NCO Group has a credit agreement with Citizens Bank, for itself and as administrative agent for other participating lenders thar
originally provided for borrowings up to $350 nullion, structured as a revolving credit facility. The borrowing capacily of the credit
facility is subject to quarterly reductions of $5.2 million until maturity, and 50 percent of the net proceeds received from any offering
of debt or equity. As of December 31, 2002, there was $51.2 million available under the credit agreement, NCO Grong's borrowings
are collateralized by substantially all the assets of NCO Group, including our common stock owned by NCO Group. Pursnant to the
Merger, we entered into a credit agreement with NCO Group in the form of a subfacility under its existing credit facility, Certain of
our assets have been pledged to Citizens Bank and other pariicipating lenders to secure our borrowings under ihe subfacility. The
balance on the NCOG credit facility and our subfacility will become due on May 20, 2004. The borrowlug capacity of the subfacility
is subject to quarterly reductions. Effective March 31, 2003, quarterly reductions of $3.75 miliion are required waiil the earlier of May
20, 2004 or the date at which the subfacility is reduced to $25 million. The maximum borrowing capacity on the subfacility was
reduced by $2.5 million each quarter in 2002 and was $40 million as of December 31, 2002.

The NCO Group credit agreement and the NCOG subfacility contain certain financial covenants such as maintaining net worth and
funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (“EBITDA”) ratio reguivements, and include restrictions
on, among other things, acquisitions and distributions to stockholders. As of December 31, 2002, NCOG and we were It compliance
with all of the financial covenants.

—h

The subfacility carries interest at 2 percent over NCO Group's underlying rate from Citizens Bank and other participating lenders, o
which 1 percent is paid to the lenders and 1 percent is paid to NCO Group. At the eption of NCO Group, NCG Group's bomowing
bear interest at a rate equal to either Citizens Bank's prime rate plus a margin ranging from 0.25 percent to 0.50 percent that i
determined quarterly based upon NCO Group's consolidated funded debt to EBITDA ratio (Citizens Bank's prime rate was 4.

|

ot
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We have two secured notes payable which were assumed in the Merger that have debt service payments equal to total collections less
semcmg fees and expenses. No additional borrowings are available on these notes. The combined balances of these two secured
no;¢s payable amounted to $41.6 million and $35.5 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. These borrowings carry
‘at LIBOR plus 0.65 percent and 15 percent, respectively, and mature on March 2005 aud December 2004, respectively. One
¢ secured- fidtes has a $900,000 liquidity reserve that restricts our use of cash. The reserve will be returned te vs upon full
*,a on:of the:note. As of December 31, 2002, we were in compliance with all of the financial covenants uader the notes.
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We also have a note payable related to our unconsolidated subsidiary that we assumed in connection with the Merger, This vote
payable matures on January 2004, carries an interest rate of 8.61 percent, and had a balance of $5.5 million and $2.4 millicn as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. In May 2002, another secured note assumed in the Merger was paid off. Al collections
from this note are now remitted directly to us, and are used to purchase new receivables and fund operations.

In August 2002, we entered into a four-year financing agreement with Cargill Financial to provide financing for la;s s purchases of
accounts receivable at 90 percent of the purchase price, unless otherwise negotiated. Cargill Financial, at their sole discrerion, has the
right to finance any purchase of $4 million or more. This agreement gives us the financing to puichase larger portfolios that we may
not otherwise be able to purchase, and has no minimum or maximum credit authorization. Borrowings carry iiterest ai the prime rate
plus 3.25 percent (prime rate was 4.25 percent as of December 31, 2002), and are nonrecourse to us and NCOG, except for the assets
within the- special purpose entities established in connection with this fihancing agreement. Debt service pavments squal iotal

-collections-less—servicing-feesand ‘expenses until each individiial borrowing is fully Tepaid and owr original investment s retumed,

including interest. Thereafter, Cargill Financial is paid a residual of 40 percent of collections less servicing costs, unless otherwise
negotiated. Individual loans are required to be repaid based on ¢ollections, but not more than two years from the date of borrowing.
Total debt outstanding under this facility as of December 31, 2002 was $17.6 million. As of December 31, 2002, we wers in
compliance with all of the financial covenants.

We currently have a fixed price, three-month renewable agreement ("forward-flow") with a major financial institution that obligates us
to purchase, on a monthly basis, portfolios of charged off receivables meeting certain criteria. As of December 31, 2003, we were
obligated to purchase accounts receivable to a maximum of $1.8 millien per month through May 2003. A portion of the purchase
price is deferred for twelve months, including a nominal rate of interest. NCOG guarantees this forward-flow agreement. Included in
notes payable is $2.1 million of deferred purchase price as of December 31, 2002 incurred on purchases from June 2002 through
December 2002.

The debt service requirements associated with borrowings under our secured credit facilities, including the borrowings under the
Cargill Financial agreement, and the mandatory reductions on our subfacility from NCOG have increased liquidity requirements. The
availability under the subfacility was reduced to $40.0 as of December 31, 2002, and provides for additional mandatory reductions of
$3.75 million per quarter starting March 31, 2003 until the subfacility is reduced to $25 million. All of our secured debt requires
amortization of principal based on total collections net of servicing fees and expenses on the secured portfolios. We anticipate that
cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund all mandatory reductions on the subfacility, debt service payments on securad
debt, operating expenses, interest expense and mandatory purchases of accounts receivable under our existing forward-flow

agreement. Cash flows from operations are directly related to the amount of collections actually received. Estimates are used to
forecast collections and revenue. A decrease in cash flows from operations due to a decrease in collections from changes m the
economy or the performance of NCOF as service provider, may require us to reduce the amount of accounts receivable purchased.

The effect of reduced accounts receivable purchases would be a reduction in planned collections and revenue in the periods aﬁecipd.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2002 (amounts in thousands). For detailed discussion of our
contractual obligations, see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company — Notes G, H and 1.

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1to3 3tos More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
NCOG subfacility $ 36,880 $11,880 $ 25,000 $ - 5§ -
Secured notes 55,264 27,166 28,098 - -
T ard-ﬂow agreement 9,000 9,000 - - -
X t Ll,gi‘t“'\n‘tljactual obligations $101,144 $ 48,046 $ 53,098 $-- $--
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $16.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $23.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents provided by operations was principally attributable to the
decrease in net income and deferred income tax expense. Net income decreased from $13.1 million in 2001 to $8.8 million in 2002.
Additionally, $2.6 million in restricted cash was released and used to pay down debt in 2001 pursuant to the Merger, compared to
$200,000 of restricted cash being released in 2002 when a secured note was fully paid off.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $23.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $7.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in cash and cash equivalents provided by operations was principally attributable to the
large increase in net income and deferred income tax expense. Net income grew due to the significant increase in revenue generated
from the $93.5 miliion of accounts receivable acquired in the Merger; and $48:2-million-in-other-accounts receivable purchased in-the——
normal course of business in 2001. Additionally, approximately $2 6 million in restricted cash was released and used to pay down
debt in the first quarter o 2001 pursuant to the Merger. -

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $14 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $25.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001, Net cash used in investing activities is principally a function of the amount of accounts receivable
purchased, offset by collections applied to principal of purchased accounts receivable. While cash purchases of accounts receivable
grew to $69.6 million in 2002 from $48.2 million in 2001, the amount of collections applied to principal of accounts receivable,
including a purchase price adjustment of $3.2 million from the renegotiation of a contract, grew to $57 millicen in 2002 from $34.1
million in 2001. In 2002, we invested $2.0 million in our joint venture, and we received $546,000 in cash through our investment in a
consolidated subsidiary from the minority interest. Additionally, in 2001, $11.1 million in cash was used for pre-acquisition liabilities
and related costs in connection with the Merger.

Net cash used in investing activities was $25.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $27.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. While cash purchases of accounts receivable grew to $48.2 million in 2001 from $31.4 million in 2000,
the amount of collections applied to principal of purchased accounts receivable grew to $34.1 million in 2001 from $4.6 million in
2000. Additionally, in 2001, $11.1 million in cash and cash equivalents was used for pre-acquisition liabilities and related costs in
connection with the Merger.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities.

Net cash used in financing activities was $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to cash provided by investing
activities of $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Borrowings under the Cargill Financing totaled $24.5 million for
2002, compared to borrowings under the NCOG subfacility of $47.1 million in 2001. Payments on secured notes payable and the
NCOG subfacility amounted to $26.8 million in 2002, compared to $40 million in repayments on secured notes payable in 2001. In
2001, there was $2.3 million in proceeds from the issuance of common stock at the time of the Merger, and $901,000 in fees paid to
secure the NCO Group credit facility. In 2002, $217,000 in fees were paid to acquire secured debt.

t

Net cash provided by financing activities was $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $19.6 million for the

| _year ended December 31, 2000. Total borrowings increased to $47.1 million in 2001, of which $36.3 million related to debt incurred

m the Merger, from $19.6 million in 2000. Partially offsetting total borrowings, $40.0 million was repaid on notes payable during
2001 All of the borrowings in 2001 were from the NCO Group credit facility. Additionally, there was $2.3 million in proceeds from

 “ the issuance of common stock at the time of the Merger, and $901,000 in fees paid to secure the NCO Group credit facility.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We own a 100 percent retained residual interest in an investment in securitization, SPV 98-2, which was acquired in the Merger. This
transaction qualified for gain on sale accounting when the purchased receivables were originally securitized. This securitization
issued a nonrecourse nete that s due the earlier of January 2004 or satisfaction of the not= from collections, and had a balance of $2.4
million and $5.3 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The retained interest represents the present value of the

residual imerest in the securitization using discounted future cash flows after the securitization note is fully repaid, plus a cash reserve,
As of December 31, 20( 4 2001, the investment in securitization was $7.5 million and $7.3 muillion, respectively, composed of
34.2 muilion and $4.0 willion, respectively, in the present value of discounted residual cash flows plus $3.3 million in cash reserves.
The maximum exposure to loss as a result of the Company’s involvement with this investment in securitization would be limited to
the carrying value of the mvestment in the securitization. The investment accrues noncash income at a rate of 8 percent per annum on

- -+~ the residual-cash flow tomponent 6ty ~The i1icome Barned' increases the investment balance until the securitization note has been
repaid, after which, collections are split between income and amortization of the investment in securitization based on the discounted
cash flows. We recorded $162,000 and $211,000 of income on this investment for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the
period from Febiuary 21, 2001 tc December 31, 2001, respectively. The off balance sheet cash reserves of $3.3 million plus the first
31.3 million in residual caﬁh collections recei \ed after the securitization note has been repaid, have been pledged as collateral against
another securitized note,

We have a 50 percent ownership interest in a joint venture, InoVision-MEDCLR-NCOP Ventures, LLC ("Joint Venture"), with IMNV
Holdings, LLC ("IMNV"). This Joint Venture was set up in 2001 to purchase utility, medical and various other small balance accounts
receivable and is accousited for using the equity method of accounting. Included in other assets on the balance sheet is our investment
in the Joint Venture of 3$3.4 miliion and $574,000 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Included in the Statement of
Income, in “other income," was $762,000 and 3118,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, representing
our 50 percent share of operating income from this unconsolidated subsidiary. The Joint Venture has access to capital from Cargill
Financial, who, at its option, lends 90 percent of the value of the purchased accounts receivable to the Joint Venture. Borrowings
carry interest at the prime rate plus 4.25 percent {prime rate was 4.25 percent as of December 31, 2002). Debt service payments equal
total collections less servicing fees and expenses until each individual borrowing is fully repaid and the Joint Venture’s original
investment is returned, including interest. Thereafter, Cargill Financial is paid a residual of 40 percent of collections, less servicing
costs. Individual loans are required to be repaid based on coilections, but not more than two years from the date of borrowing. The
debt is cross-collateralized by all portfolios in which the lender participates, and is nonrecourse to us.

Related Party Transactions
Servicing Fees

See discussion of servicing fees contained in Item 1. “Business ~ Collection Services and Monitoring Results.”

Services Shared with NCO Group

NCO Group paid certain costs on our behalf during the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002. We reimbursed NCO Group
ini full for these costs. These costs related to certain shared services, including office space, human resources, insurance, legal, payroll
processing, external reporting, management information systems and certain other administrative expenses. Pursuant to
management’s estimate of the fair allocation of the costs, shared services amounted to $112,000, $180,000 and $180,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

v
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Limited Partnership

In December 2002, we, through one of our subsidiaries, invested $2.4 million for an 80 percent limited partnership interest in a
portfolic from a major financial institution in the United Kingdom. The portfolio is comprised of charged off consumer loans to
residents of the United Kingdom. Our 20 percent general pariner in the transaction is NCO Financial Services (UK) Ltd. (“*NCO
(UK)™), a wholly owned subsidiary of NCO Group. NCO (UK) is in the business of contingency fee based collections in the United
Kingdom, and also purchases accounts receivable in the United Kingdom. NCO (UK) has been servicing the portfolio since originally
outsourced by the seller and will continue to do so under the parmership agreement between the two companies. Under the
partnership agreement, NCO (UK) will receive a 15 percent preferred distribution for its services to the partnership, including the
ongoing servicing of the portfolio. Thereafter, collections are split 80 perceut to us and 20 percent to NCO (UK). The operating
results of the partership have been included in our consolidated results. NCO (UUK)’s 20 percent interest is deducted from earnings as
*~- a minority interest'in consolidated earnings. “The minority interest was $15,000 forthe yearended December-3172002: -~ - —= -+ — ==~ ——

Impact of Recently Issued and Proposed Acesunting Pronouncements
FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements jor Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others”

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 457), “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 elaborates
on the disclosures required by guarantors in their interim and annual financial statements. FIN 45 also requires a guarantor to recognize a
liability at the date of inception for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee. The disclosure requirements are
effective for periods ending after December 15, 2002. The initial recognition and measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after Decerber 31, 2002, We adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45, and do not believe the
adoption of the recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 will have a material impact on our financial position and results of
operations.

FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consoclidation of Variable Interest Entities”

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN” 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. The objective of
FIN 46 is to improve financial reporting by companies involved with variable interest entities. FIN 46 defines variable interest entities
and requires that variable interest entities be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss
from the variable interest entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. The disclosure
requirements are effective for periods ending after December 15, 2002. The consolidation requirements apply immediately to variable
interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and apply to existing variable interest entities in the first fiscal year or interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003. We adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 46, and do not believe the adoption of FIN 46 will
have a material impact on our financial position and results of operations.
Accounting for Certain Purchased Loans or Debt Securities (formerly known as Discounts Related 1o Credit Quality) (Exposure
Draft—December 1998) .

The exposure draft applies to all companies that acquire loans for which it is probable at the acquisition date that all contractual
‘ amounts due under the acquired loans will not be collected. The proposal addresses accounting for differences between contractual
-~ and expected future cash flows from an investor's initial investment in certain loans when such differences are attributable, in part, to
i credit quality. The scope also includes such loans acquired in purchased business combinations. If adopted, the proposed Statement of
. Posmon (*SOP”) would supersede Practice Bulletin 6, Amortization of Discounts on Certain Acquired Loans. In June 2001, the FASB
leared the SOP for issuance subject to minor editorial changes and planned to issue a final SOP in early 2002. The SOP has not yet
een issued.

e T osed SOP would limit the revenue that may be accrued to the excess of the estimate of expected future cash flows over the
folios initial cost of accounts receivable acquired. The proposed SOP would require that the excess of the contractual cash flows
ected future cash flows not be recognized as an adjustment of revenue, expense or on the balance sheet. The proposed SOP
ﬁ'eeze‘the ‘IRR originally estimated when the accounts receivable are purchased for subsequent impairment testing. Rather than
ted IRR if the original collection estimates are not received, the carrying value of a portfolio would be written down
’ngmal IRR. Increases in expected future cash flows would be recognized prospectively through adjustment of the
lio’s remaining life. The exposure draft provides that previously issued annual financial statements would not need to
final issuance of this SOP, we caunot ascertain its effect on our reporting.




item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of business, including the impact of interest rate changes, changes
in corporate tax rates, and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. A material change in these rates could adversely affect our
operating results and cash flows. A 25 basis-point increase in interest rates could increase our annual interest expense by $25,000 for
cach $10 million of variable debt outstanding for the entire year. We retain an investment in securitization with respect to our
securitized accounts receivable, which is a market risk sensitive financial instrument held for purposes other than trading. This
investment exposes us to market risk, which may arise from changes in interest and discount rates applicable to this investment. The
impact of a 1 percent increase in the discount rate used by us in the fair value calculations would not have a material impact on our -
balance sheet as of December 31, 2002. There would be no impact on our future cash flows. We own an 80 percent interest in a
limited partnership that invests in accounts receivable in the United Kingdom. This investment exposes us to risk due to fluctuations

.. _in_foreign-currency-exchange-rates.  As of-December-31;-2002; exchange rate™fluctuations did not have a matetial impact on our
balance sheet. We do not invest in derivative financial or commodity instruments.

Inflation *

We believe that inflation has not had a material impact on our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002.
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
NCO Portfolio Management, Inc.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Auditors -

To the Board of Directors and -
Stockholders of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2002.. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opuuon on these ﬁnanmal statements based on our audits. -

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes exannmng, on a test basis, evidence supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
NCO Portfolio Management Inc. at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Phitadelphia, PA
January 31, 2003
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
{Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,
ASSETS 2001 ) 2002
Cash and cash equivalents » h) 6,509 $ £,388
Restricted cash 1,125 50
Purchased accounts receivable 136,339 148,963
Investment in securitization o To7.312 7,474
Deferred income taxes ~ ~ 7 T T T T T T T e o 992 T T oTTmT o
Deferred costs , 651 347
. Other assets oy 784 3,520
Total assets : $ 153,712 $ 167,797
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 73 $ 89
Accrued expenses 2,861 3,836
Accrued compensation and related expenses 405 155
Notes payable 45,379 55,264
Note payable - affiliate 47,130 36,880
Deferred income taxes - 4276
Minority interest - 560
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000 shares authorized,
no shares issued and outstanding - -
Common stock, $.01 par value, 35,000 shares authorized and
13,576 shares issued and outstanding in 2001 and 2002, respectively 136 136
Additional paid-in capital 40,826 40,826
Other comprehensive loss - ]
Retained earnings 16,902 25,682
Total stockholders’ equity 57,864 66,637
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 153,712 $ 167,797

See accompanying notes.
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
{Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
- -Revenue - ————— - - i s = e PR S T 62,929 $ 63,379
Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related expenses 5o 327 1,624 1,532
Servicing fee expenses 5,741 27,771 35,534
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 112 2,017 2,794
Amortization expense - 250 320
Impairment of purchased accounts receivable - 2,649 1,935
Total operating costs and expenses 6,180 34,311 42,115
Income from operations 6,971 28,618 21,264
Other income (expense):
Interest and other income - 531 1,024
Interest expense (1,334) (8,230) (8,224)
Total other expense (1,334 (7,699) (7,200)
Income before income tax expense 5,637 20,919 14,064
Income tax expense 2,114 7,845 5,269
Income from operations before minority interest 3,523 13,074 8,795
Minority interest - - (15)
Net income $ 3,523 $ 13,074 3 8,780
Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.41 $ 1.02 $ 0.65
Diluted 3 0.41 $ 1.02 $ 0.65
Weighted average shares outstanding:
[ Basic 8,599 12,871 13,576
i’ - Diluted 8,599 12,871 13,577

See accompanying notes.
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Balance at January 1, 2000

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2000
Issuance of common stock

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2001

Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2002

NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
{(Amounts in thousands)

Commeon Stock Additional Com;?rteh}:nsive Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Paid-in Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Income Total
8599 $ 1 5 - 3 » -5 305§ 305 306
- ~ - - 3,523 3,523 3,523
8,599 1 - - 3,828 3:,828 3,829
4,977 135 4&;@26 - - - 40,961
- - - - 13,074 13,074 13,074
13,576 136 40,826 - 16,902 16,902 57,864
- - - - 8,780 8,780 8,780
. . - 7N - O @
$ 8,773
13,576 § 136 $ 40,826 $ (MH'$ 25682 66,637

See accompanying notes.
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Amounts in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002

Cash flows from operating activities: .
Net income b 3,523 $ 13,074 $ 8,780
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net.cash : )

o ...____provided by operating activities.. . - .— - - m S J . i
Amortization of deferred costs ) - 250 320

Impairment of purchased accounts receivable ) - 2,649 1,935
Income from investment in securitization - (211) (162)
Equity income from investment in joint venture i - (118) (762)
Minority interest ) - - 15
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Restricted cash - 2,555 225
Other assets - 1,035 36
Accounts payable and accrued expenses : - (4,191 841
Deferred income taxes 4,317 8,446 5,268
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,840 23,489 16,496
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of accounts receivable (31,351) (48,149) (69,553)
Collections applied to principal of purchased accounts receivable 4,565 34,159 53,818
Purchase price adjustments applied to principal on purchased accounts receivable - - 3,197
Investment in joint venture, net of distributions - 457) (2,038)
Investment in consolidated subsidary by minority interest, net of distributions - - 546
Net cash paid for pre-acquisition liabilities and acquisition related costs (666) (11,077) -
Net cash used in investing activities (27,452) (25,524) (14,030)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings (repayments) under note payable - affiliate - 47,130 (10,250)
Borrowings under secured notes payable - - 24,477
Repayment of secured notes payable - (40,005) (16,598)
Payment of fees to acquire debt - (901) (216)
Issuance of common stock - 2,320 -
Notes payable, affiliate borrowings 19,612 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 19,612 8,544 (2,587)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - - 6,509 - (121)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - - 6,509
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ - $ 6,509 $ 6,388

See accompanying notes.
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note A--Organization and Business

NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. ("NCO Portfolio" or the "Company") was incorporated in Delaware on Januvary 22, 1999 (date of
inception) under the name of NCO Portfolio Funding, Inc. The Company changed its name from NCO Portfolio Funding, Inc. to
NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. in February 2001, NCO Portfolio purchases and manages past due consumer accounts receivable
from consumer creditors such as banks, finance companies, retail merchants, hospitals, utilities, and other consumer-oriented
companies. NCO Portfolio’s purchased accounts receivable originate from consumers located throughout the United States, Canada

" and the Unifed Kingdom.  NCO Portfolio has furided its purchased accounts receivable through internal cash flows; finanCing from

NCO Group, Inc. ("NCO Group", “NCOG”, or the "Parent"), and other financing facilities. NCO Portfolio was a wholly owned
subsidiary of NCO Group until NCO Portfolio's merger with Creditrust Corporation ("Creditrust") on February 20, 2001 (the
"Merger"). In comnection with the Merger, NCO Portfolio became a publicly traded company (NASDAQ: NCPM). Included in the
statement of income are the results of operations of the net assets acquired in the Merger with Creditrust for the period from February
21, 2001 through December 31, 2001.

As part of the acquisition, NCO Portfolio entered into a ten-year service agreement that appointed a wholly owned subsidiary of NCO
Group, NCO Financial Systems, Inc. ("NCOF"), as the provider of collection services to NCO Portfolio. NCO Group has agreed to
offer all of its future U.S. accounts receivable purchase opportunities to NCO Portfolio. Additionally, NCO Group amended its credit
agreement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania ("Citizens Bank") to provide a credit facility to NCO Portfolio in the form of a
subfacility (Note I).

During 2002, all disputed claims and administrative costs related to the bankruptcy of Creditrust were substantially resolved and,
based upon such final determination, NCO Group now owns 63.347 percent of the outstanding NCO Portfolio common stock. (See
Note C)

Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all affiliated subsidiaries and entities controlled by the
Company. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Two affiliates that the Company does not
control are InoVision-MEDCLR-NCOP Ventures, LLC and Creditrust SPV98-2, LLC ("SPV 98-2") and are not included in the
consolidated financial statements. See Note F - Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
NCO Portfolio considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Onme securitization that is accounted for as secured borrowing has provisions that restrict NCO Portfolio's use of cash. Restricted cash
as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 was $1.1 million and $900,000, respectively.

Purchased Accounts Receivable

. NCO Portfolio accounts for its investment in purchased accounts receivable on an accrual basis under the guidance of the American
o Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Practice Bulletin 6, "Amortization of Discounts on Certain Acquired Loans,” using unique
i | and;¢xclusive portfolios. Portfolios are established with accounts having similar attributes. Typically, each portfolio consists of an

mdw dual acquisition of accounts that are initially recorded at cost, which includes the external costs of acquiring portfolios. Once a

pogff:iho are-accounted for as collections in that portfolio. The discount between the cost of each portfolio dnd the face value of the

i$ not recorded smce NCO Portfolio expects to collect a relatively small percentage of each portfolio's face value.
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS;-(CONT INUPiIi)
Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Purchased Accounts Receivable (continued)

Collections on the portfolios are allocated to revenue and principal reduction based on the estimated internal rate of return ("IRR") for
each portfolio. The IRR for each portfolio is derived based on the expected monthly collections over the estimated economic life of
each portfolio (generally five years, based on NCO Portfolio's collection experience), compared to the original purchase price.
Revenue on purchased accounts receivable is recorded monthly based on each portfolio's effective IRR for the quarter applied to each
portfolio's monthly opening-carrying value. To- the -extent collections exceed the revenue, the Carrying value is rediced and the
reduction is recorded as collections applied to principal. Because the IRR reflects collections for the entire econoniic life of the
portfolio, and those collections are not constant, lower collection rates, typically in the early months of ownership, can result in a
situation where the actual collections are less than the revenue aberual. In this situation, the carrying value of the portfolio may be
increased by the difference between the revenue accrual and collections.

To the extent actual collections differ from estimated projections, NCO Portfolio prospectively adjusts the IRR. If the carrying value
of a particular portfolio exceeds its expected future collections, a charge to income would be recognized in the amount of such
impairment. Additional impairments on each quarters’ previously impaired portfolios may occur if the current estimated future cash
flow projection, after being adjusted prospectively for actual collection results, is less than the current carrying value recorded. After
the impairment of a portfolio, all collections are recorded as a return of capital and no income is recorded on that portfolic until the
full carrying value of the portfolio has been recovered. The estimated IRR for each portfolio is based on estimates of future
collections, and actual collections will vary from current estimates. The difference could be material.

Third party legal and professional fees incurred with respect to the acquisition of purchase accounts receivable are capitalized as part
of the cost of the portfolio, and amortized over the life of the portfolio. For the year ended December 31, 2002, legal and professional
fees of $242,000 were capitalized and included in the cost of purchased accounts receivable.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes.

In the ordinary course of accounting for purchased accounts receivable, estimates are made by management as to the amount and
timing of future cash flows expected from each portfolio. The estimated future cash flow of each portfolio is used to compute the IRR
for the portfolio. The IRR is used to allocate collections between revenue and prificipal reduction of the carrying value of the
purchased accounts receivable.

On an ongoing basis, the Company compares the historical trends of each portfolio to projected collections. Projected collections are
then increased, within preset limits, or decreased based on the actual cumulative performance of each portfolio. We review each
portfolio’s adjusted projected collections to determine if further downward adjustment is warranted. Management regularly reviews
the trends in collection patterns and uses its best efforts to improve under-performing portfolios. However, actual results will differ
from these estimates and a material change in these estimates could occur within one year. (See Note E)

Iixvestments in Debt and Equity Securities

<NCO "Portfolio accounts for investments, such as the investment in securitization, SPV 98-2, in accordance with Statement of

'c1a1 Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115 "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equlty Securmes " As such,

ities. NCO Portfolio records its investment in secuntlzatlon as an available for sale debt security. Such a security is recorded at
alue,;and the unreahzed gam or loss net of the related taxes, is not reﬂected in income but i is recorded as other comprehenswe




NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Tovestments in Debt and Equity Securities (continued)
The investment in securitization represents the residual interest in a securitized pool of purchased accounts receivable acquired in the

Merger. The investment in securitization accrues interest at an effective yield (IRR), which is estimated based on the expected
monthly collections over the estimated economic life of the investment (approxnnately five years). Cost approxunated fair value of

this investment as of December 31, 2001 and 2002. (Se¢ Note F). T e

Foreign Currency Translation

NCO Portfolio consolidates an entity (see Note I) whose functional éurrency is the British Pound. For this entity, the assets and
liabilities have been translated using the current exchange rates, and the income and expenses have been translated using historical
exchange rates. The adjustments resulting from translation have been recorded separately in stockholders’ equity as other
comprehensive loss and are not included in determining net income.

Income Taxes

Effective with the Merger, NCO Portfolio files its own income tax returns. The Company accounts for income taxes using an asset
and liability approach. The asset and liability approach requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities.

The portfolios of purchased accounts receivable are composed of distressed debt. Collection results are not guaranteed until received;
accordingly, for tax purposes, any gain on a particular portfolio is deferred until the full cost of its acquisition is recovered. Revenue
for financial reporting purposes is recognized over the life of the portfolio. Deferred tax liabilities arise from deferrals created during
the early stages of the portfolio. These deferrals reverse afier the cost basis of the portfolio is recovered. The creation of new tax
deferrals from future purchases of portfolios are expected to offset a significant portion of the reversal of the deferrals from portfolios
where the collections have become fully taxable.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share (“EPS”) was computed by dividing net income applicable to common stockholders for the years ended
December 31, 2000, 2001, and 2002, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS was computed by
dividing net income for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, and 2002, by the weighted avérage number of common shares
outstanding plus all common equivalent shares. Outstanding options have been utilized in calculating diluted net income per share
only when their effect would be dilutive. The Company had no stock options outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2000. As
of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were 581,000 and 591,000 options outstanding to purchase shares of common stock,
respectively.

The reconciliation of basic-to-diluted weighted average shares outstanding was as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

000 2001 i} 2002

' ; Do 8,599 12,871 13,576
tive effect of options - - 1
Hafid o )
edi | 8,599 12,871 13,577

D DR 350,35 o i oy 5
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)

Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Stoek Option Plan

The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”
("APB 25") and related interpretations. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the stock options equaled the fair value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant, no compensation cost was recognized. In accordance with SFAS 123, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”, the Company does not recognize compensation cost based on the fair value of the options granted at

——grant-date.-If the-Company-had elected torecognize compensation cost based on the fair value of the options granted at grant date, net
income and net income per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated in the following table for the periods
ending (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts): '

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income — as reported........comvvecevverivnrerreerressrenns $ 3,523 $13,074 $ 8,780
Proforma compensation, net of taxes............... (29) (372) (730)
Net income -- pro forma ........cocveveeeveineerieccerivenrenns 3,494 $12.702 8,050
Net income per share — as reported:
Basic and diluted.........ccecvnevrineiverreriinennnns $0.41 $1.02 $0.65
Net income per share -- pro forma:
Basic and diluted.........ccoeevererrecrerennnnennnens $041 $0.99 $0.59

Deferred Costs

NCO Portfolio capitalizes legal and professional fees incurred in connection with new debt facilities. The costs are being amortized
over the terms of the facilities, which range from twenty-four to thirty-six months.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts for the year ended December 31, 2001 have been reclassified to conform with 2002 presentation for comparative
purposes.

Note C—-Acquisitions

On February 20, 2001, Creditrust merged with and into NCO Portfolio, at which time NCO Portfolio became a publicly traded
company. The Merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. As a result of the Merger, NCO Portfolio issued
4,977,482 shares of common stock resulting in a total of 13,576,519 shares of NCO Portfolio common stock outstanding, including
291,732 shares held in escrow. In 2002, the 291,732 shares held in escrow were distributed to eligible stockholders upon the final
resolution of certain disputed and administrative claims. The purchase price was valued at approximately $25.0 million. Additional
acquisition related costs incurred in connection with the Merger were $4.2 million. The Company allocated the purchase price based
on the fair value of the net assets acquired, principally to purchased accounts receivable, deferred tax asset and certain assumed
ligbilities. The net deferred tax asset of $14.4 million recorded was the result of the combination of a significant net operating loss
“carryforward acquired from Creditrust, offset by deferred tax liabilities arising from book tax differences in the carrying value of the
~ acquired accounts receivable and further limited by Federal tax law regarding the change in control of-ownership of the Company.
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Note C—Acquisitions (Continued) -
The following summarizes the unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, assuming
the Merger occurred as of the beginning of the respective years. The pro forma information is provided for informational purposes
only. It is based on historical information, and does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred, nor is it

indicative of the future results of operations of the consolidated entities (amounts in thousands, except per share data):

For the vears ended December 31,

2000 2001
REVEIMIE ..o ees s ssesseessesseeesmsssossesoenseen $ 55,300 $ 66,509
Net (108SS) COME «..ecvvirireeeriri e eeeieresetseceevrras e ess e s sesssesesenion $(59,751) $3,583
Net (loss) income per share - basic .....cccoovieinenriiceinrerieneseene $(4.40) $0.26
Net (loss)-income per share - diluted.......oovviciiinicninnnan, $(4.40) $0.26

Note D—Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The accompanying financial statements include various estimated fair value information as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, as
required by SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments." Such information, which pertains to NCO
Portfolio's financial instruments, is based on the requirements set forth in the Statement and does not purport to represent the
aggregate net fair value of NCO Portfolio.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is
practicable to estimate fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Purchased Accounts Receivable

NCO Portfolio records purchased accounts receivable at cost, which is discounted from the contractual receivable balance. NCO
Portfolio recorded the accounts receivable acquired in the Merger at fair value. The carrying value of purchased accounts receivable,
which is based upon estimated future cash flows, approximated fair value at December 31, 2001 and 2002.

Investment in Securitization

Upon completion of the Merger, NCO Portfolio recorded the investment in securitization acquired from Creditrust at fair value. As of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, the carrying value approximated fair value.

Notes Payable

- Quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or the current rate offered to NCO Portfolio for debt of the same remaining
maturities are used to estimate the fair value of NCO Portfolio's notes payable. At December 31, 2001 and 2002, the carrying amount
of the notes payable approximated fair value.
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e meme—-— ——Purchased-accounts-receivable acquiredin the Meiger.”..

NCO PORIF@E IO MANAGEMENT, IN,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCEAL STATEMIEN?

Note E--Purchased Accounts Receivable -

NCO Portfolio purchases defaulted consumer accounts receivabie at a discount fom the actuar pr
summarizes the change in purchased accounts receivable for the vears ended December 31, (amo S

Balance, at beginning of year...........c.cooiiiiinn AP

Purchases of accounts receivable
Collections on purchased accounts receivable..
Purchase price adjustment
Revenue recognized.......coviiieiiinninnrciccicec e
Impairment of purchased accounts receivable ...

Balance, at end of Year......cccviveeveciniii e

During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, i*npainnexn charges of $2.6 milito

recorded as a charge to income on portfolios where the carrying valuss exceeded the expecis i o income wik be
recorded on these portfolios until their carrying values have been fully recovered. As of D;c‘_maar 24 ~d 2002, the cornhined
carrying values on all impaired portfolios aggregated $5.7 miliion and $5.8 muilion, re T4 3.9
total purchased accounts receivable, respectively, representing their net realizable va'zue

QoY

Included in collections for the year ended December 31, 2602, was $3.7 :
year ended December 31, 2002, the Company concluded a coniract re an: with
in a $4 million cash price reduction on several purchases from 2000 aad Zuui The 34 v
to purchase price of the affected portfolios. On several previously impaired portfeli
value of such portfolios, resulting in the cost of certain of the portfelios becoming §
ended December 31, 2002, was $803,000 from these fully cost recovered porifo h 3
recorded during the year ended December 31, 2002, on several nonumpaired portfolio
price reduction.

Note F--Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

n e

-NCO Portfolio owns a 100 percent retained residual interest in an investment in securitizatiou, ZFY 5 o sguired
Merger. BOElYE ; i
securitization issued a nonrecourse note that is due the earlier of January 2904 or sa
interest rate of 8.61 percent, and had a balance of $5.5 million and $2.4 rauliicn as of Dre
retained interest represents the present value of the residual interest in the securitization using

securitization note is fully repaid, plus a cash reserve. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the ‘nve

s
L2

residual cash flows plus $3.3 million in cash reserves for each year.
involvement with this investment in securitization would be limited to the carrving value of
{2 . investment accrues noncash income at a rate of 8 percent per annum on the residuai cash ﬁ
’ in 'reases the investment balance until the securitization note has been repaid, after w
g amornzatlon of the investment in securitization based on the discounted cash flows. NCI Porsf
E 1 I of mcome on this investment for the period from February 21 2001 to Decembpr 53 79(" a‘:.zd £




S0 PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(CONTINUED)

Note Feinvesinents ie Unconsoiidated Sobsidiaries {Continned)

NCO Porifoio has a 30
with [MNY ﬁ(‘*(‘ulﬁa L

[

small balance accou rm rec

elcem J‘»"I“:‘lahi D intersst in a joint venture, InoVision-MEDCLR-NCOP Ventures, LLC (“Joint Venture")
C This Joint Venlure was esiablished in 2001 to purchase utility, medical and various other
unted for using tne equity method of accounting. Included in “other assets” on the

e Joint Veuiure of $374,000 and $3.4 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
1 ovher incowe,” were $118,000 and $762,000 for the years ended December

f‘

9
f

(7

in
¢ Company’
nwure *13; access ! ic wp tal through Cargill Financial who, at its option, lends 90 percent of the value of the
i Horrowings carry interest at the prime rate plus 4.25 percent (prime rate was 4.25
Aynents equa‘r total'éoliecti@ns less servicing fees and expenses until each individual
fnvestment i u’umf:‘., including interest. Thereafter, Cargill Financial is paid a
& . *'uhw dual lnans are required to be repaid based on collections, but not more

0 e dawe of boiroy > dsbi is cross Voiia sralized by all porifolios in which the lender participates, and is
»mecoulse to MNCO Portfolic. The following taliie sunumarizes the financial information of the Joint Venture as of and for the years
nded December 31, 2001 and 2642 (amount:, m muucdxsais!

hasc‘* ACCOUNTS 1RSIV
I 25 uI iecember .,1 24

o "‘i

2001 2002
TOTAT BSSBES 1 1oviitiieteceeecre et e e ete e er et cv e e et eerb et rat et ae e e e s srenens $ 5,581 $ 11,638
TOTAL THABIIEIES. ot oot ettt et ea et s aae s $ 4,455 $ 4,944
REVEIUE. «oiiie e e ee e e e e e reaene v $ 1,061 $9,832
Net ICOMe .o s e $ 236 $1,524

Note G--Notes Pavabile

NCO Portfolio n%@umed four securitized notes payable in connection with the Merger, one of which is included in an unconsolidated
subsidiary, SPV&8-Z (See Note ¥). The remaining three notes are reflected in notes payable. These notes payable were originally
established to fund the purchase of accounts receivable. Each of the notes payable is nonrecourse to the Company and NCO Group, is
secured by 2 portfolio of purchased accounts receivable, znd is bound by an indenture and servicing agreement. Pursuant to the
Merger, the trustee appomted NCOF as the successor servicer for each porifolio of purchased accounts receivable within these
securitized notes. When the notes payable were established, a separate nonrecourse special purpose finance subsidiary was created to
house the assets and issue the debt. These are term notes without the ability to re-borrow. Monthly principal payments on the notes
equal all collections after servicing fees, collection costs, interest expense and ddministrative fees.

The first securitized note ("Warehouse Facility™) was established in September 1998 through Creditrust Funding I LLC, a special
purpose finance subsidiary. The Warehouse F acmty carries a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.65 percent per annum, and the
final due date of all payments under the facility is the earlier of March 2005, or satisfaction of the note from collections. A $900,000
liquidity reserve is included in restricted cash as of December 3%, 2001 and 2002, and is restricted as to use until the facility is retired.
Interest expense, trustee fees and guarantee fees aggregated $945,000 and $621,000 for the period from February 21, 2001 to
December 31, 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2002, respectively. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the amount outstanding
on the facility was $17.8 mullion and $15.4 mil[ion respectively. The note insurer, Radian Asset Assurarce Inc., formerly Asset
Guaranty Insurance Company, has been guaraniced against loss by the Company for up to $4.5 million, which will be reduced if and
when reserves and residual cash flows from ancther securitization, SPV 98-2, are posted as additional collateral for this facility.
: The second securitized note ("SPV99-1") was established in August 1999 through Creditrust SPV99-1, LLC, a special purpose finance
:subs ti;jlary SPV99-1 carries interest at 9.43 percent per annum, with a final payment date of the earher of August 2004, or satisfaction
of the note from collections. In May 2002, the note was pald off, and the $225,000 liquidity reserve was returned to the Company.
"The !quldlty reserve was included in restricted cash as of December 31, 2001, and was restricted as to use until the facility was

nterest expense and trustee fees ﬂLUYCE{a ted 3631,000 and $36,000 for the period from February 21, 2001 to December 31,
 for the year ended December 31, 2002, respectively. As of December 31, 2001, the amount outstanding on the facility was
-8} nlhon "

(o8}
-~}

G percentstrareof “operating income “fromthis unconsolidated” -
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Note G--Notes Payable (Continued)

The third securitized note ("SPV99-2") was established in August 1999 through Creditrust SPV99-2, LLC, a special purpose finance
subsidiary. SPV99-2 carries interest at 15 percent per annum, with a final payment date of the earlier of December 2004, or
satisfaction of the note from collections. Interest expense and trustee fees aggregated $3.3 million for the period from February 21,

2001 to December 31, 2001 and for the year ended December 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the amount outstanding
on the fac111ty was $23 8 xmlhon and $20 1 mxlhon respectlvely

In August 2002, the Company entered into a four-year exclusivity agreement with CFSC Capital Corp. XXXIV ("Cargill Financial").
The agreement stipulates that all purchases of accounts receivable with a purchase price in excess of $4 million, with limited
exceptions, shall be first offered to Cargill Financial for financing at its discretion. The agreement has no minimum or maximum
credit authorization. The Company may terminate the agreement at any time after two years for a cost of $125,000 per month for each
month of the remaining four years, payable monthly. If Cargill Financial chooses to participate in the financing of a portfolio of
accounts receivable, the financing will be at 90 percent of the purchase price, unless otherwise negotiated, with floating interest at the
prime rate plus 3.25 percent (prime rate was 4.25 percent as of December 31, 2002). Each borrowing is due twenty-four months after
the loan is made. Debt service payments equal collections less servicing fees and interest expense. As additional interest, Cargill
Financial will receive 40 percent of the residual collections, unless otherwise negotiated, which is defined as all cash collections after
servicing fees, floating rate interest, repayment of the note and the initial investment by the Company, including imputed interest.
Borrowings under this financing agreement are nonrecourse to us and NCO Group, except for the assets within the special purpose
entities established in connection with the financing agreement. This loan agreement contains a collections performance requirement,
among other covenants, that, if not met, provides for cross-collateralization with any other Cargill Financial financed portfolios, in
addition to other remedies. As of December 31, 2002, NCO Portfolio was in compliance with all required covenants.

During 2002, the Company purchased accounts receivable from Great Lakes Collection Bureau, Inc. and another major credit card
institution, which were financed through Cargill Financial under the exclusivity agreement. The total amount borrowed under two
notes amounted to $24.5 million. The final payment date on the notes is the earlier of August 2004 and November 2004, respectively,
or satisfaction of the notes from collections. Interest expense totaled $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, which
includes $831,000 of accrued interest representing Cargill Financial's residual interest earned. The effective interest rate on these
notes, including the residual interest component was approximately 21.8 percent for the year ended December 31, 2002. As of
December 31, 2002, $17.6 million was outstanding under this facility.

The required minimum principal payments payable by NCO Portfolio are included in the table under Note 1.

Note H-Commitmeiits and Contingencies
Forward-Flow Agreement

NCO Portfolio currently has a fixed price, three-month renewable agreement ("forward-flow") with a major financial institution that

. obligates NCO Portfolio to purchase, on a monthly basis, portfolios of charged off receivables meeting certain criteria. As of
December 31, 2002, NCO Portfolio was obligated to purchase accounts receivable to a maximum of $1.8 million per month through
May 2003. A portion of the purchase price is deferred for twelve months, including a nominal rate of interest. NCO Group
guarantees this forward-flow agreement. Included in notes payable is $2.1 million of deferred purchase price as of December 31,
2002,

Litigation

. NCO Portfolio is party, from time to time, to various legal proceedings incidental to its business. In the opinion of management, none
i of these items individually or in the aggregate will have a significant effect on the financial position, results of operations, cash flows,
As ;or-hqmdny of NCO Portfolio.
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“commission” ranging from 20 percentto 40 percent of collectionis depending on the Hattire of the accounts. NCOF iay outsource

NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Note [--Related Party Traﬁsactions |
Servicing Fees

As part of the Merger, NCO Portfolio entered into a ten-year service agreement that appointed NCOF as the provider of collection
services to NCO Portfolio. NCO Group has agreed to offer all of its future U.S. accounts receivable purchase opportunities to NCO
Portfolio. NCO Portfolio pays NCOF to perform collection services for its purchased accounts receivable. Generally, NCOF is paid a

collections activities. As customary in the market, the cost of outsourcing is generally higher as accounts age and are passed to
another placement level. Management believes that the commission rates paid are reasonable and are consistent with rates charged by
other collection agencies for the same type of services. Servicing feds paid to NCOF amounted to $5.7 million, $27.5 million and
$35.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Shared Services

NCO Group paid certain costs on behalf of NCO Portfolio during the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002. NCO Portfolio
reimbursed NCO Group in full for these costs. These costs related to certain shared services, including office space, human resources,
insurance, legal, payroll processing, external reporting, management information systems and certain other administrative expenses.
Shared services amounted to $112,000, $180,000 and $180,000 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

,‘ "g

Note Payable, Affiliate

Prior to the Merger, NCO Portfolio borrowed money from NCO Group to finance the purchase of accounts receivable and to fund
certain operating costs, and remitted all cash collections to NCO Group. Effective with the Merger, the notes were paid off, and all
collections have been remitted to NCO Portfolio, net of the applicable servicing fees. NCO Portfolio was charged interest on the net
outstanding note balance using a weighted average interest rate of 10.24 percent for the year ended December 31, 2000, and 10.21
percent for the period January 1, 2001 to February 20, 2001. Interest expense of $1.3 million and $379,000 was recorded for the year
ended December 31, 2000, and the period January 1, 2001 to February 20, 2001, respectively.

NCO Group Credit Facility

NCO Group has a credit agreement with Citizens Bank, for itself and as administrative agent for other participating lenders that
originally provided for borrowings up to $350 million, structured as a revolving credit facility. The borrowing capacity of the
revolving credit facility is subject to quarterly reductions of $5.2 million until maturity, and 50 péicent of the net proceeds received
from any offering of debt or equity. As of December 31, 2002, there was $51.2 million available under the credit agreement. NCO
Group's borrowings are collateralized by substantially all the assets of NCO Group, including its common stock of NCO Portfolio.
Pursuant to the Merger, NCO Portfolio entered into a credit agreement with NCO Group in the form of a subfacility under its existing
credit facility. Certain of NCO Portfolio's assets have been pledged to Citizens Bank and other participating lenders to secure our
borrowings under the subfacility. The balance under the subfacility will become due on May 20, 2004 ("Maturity Date"). The
borrowing capacity of the subfacility is subject to mandatory quarterly reductions. Effective March 31, 2003, quarterly reductions of
$3.75 million are required until the earlier of the Maturity Date or the date at which the subfacility is reduced to $25 million. The
maximum borrowing capacity on the subfacility was reduced to $40 million as of December 31, 2002. The NCO Group credit
agreement and the NCO Portfolio subfacility contain certain financial covenants such as maintaining net worth and funded debt to

. - income before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("EBITDA") ratio requirements, and include restrictions on, among other
: .thmgs acquisitions and distributions to stockholders. As of December 31, 2002, NCO Group and NCO Portfolio were in compliance
: 'nth all of the financial covenants.
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+} {Plan subject to limitations under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. NCO Portfolio will provide a matching contribution of

NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
NCO Group Credit Facility (Continued)

The subfacility carries interest at 2 percent over NCO Group's underlying rate from Citizens Bank and other participating lenders, of
which 1 percent is paid to the lenders and 1 percent is paid to NCO Group. At the option of NCO Group, NCG Greup's berrowings
bear interest at a rate equal to either Citizens Bank's prime rate plus a margin ranging from 0.25 percent {0 0.50 percent that is
determined quarterly based upon NCO Group's consolidated funded debt to EBITDA ratio (Citizens Bauk's prime rate was 4.25
percent at December 31, 2002), or the London InterBank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus a margin ranging from 1.25 percent to 2.25

" “percent depending on NCO Group s consolidated funded debt to EBITDA ratio (LIBOR was 1.38 percent at December 31, 2002). The
subfacility contains a provision that provides Citizens Bank and other participating lenders with an additional commitment fee of 0.25
percent per quarter. This charge will continue until the subfacﬂlty is reduced to $25 million. NCO Portfolic was charged an
additional 0.25 percent per quarter on the full commitment from August 20, 2001 to December 31, 2001 and the year ended December
31, 2002, which is included as part of interest expense. NCO Portfolio is charged a fee on the unused portion of the subfacility
ranging from 0.13 percent to 0.38 percent depending on NCO Group's consolidated funded debt to EBITDA ratio. As of December
31, 2001 and 2002, the outstanding balance under the subfacility was $47.1 million and $36.9 miiion, respectively. The totai
availability on the subfacility as of December 31, 2002 was $3.1 million. Interest expense totaled $3.1 millicin and $3.0 million for the
period February 21, 2001 to December 31, 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2002, respectively.

As of December 31, 2002, required and projected minimum principal payments payable by NCO Portfolioc under the notes payable
and the NCO Group subfacility are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2003 Lt et et e e e s bt e e $ 39,046

2004 ..o et s e s e r e ke e er e e e 45,828

2005 .ottt et et a e e be sttt na bt ane et ans 7,270

Total minimum principal Payments.........coocriieieeroniininennneec et eee e $92,144
Limited Partnership

In December 2002, NCO Portfolio invested $2.4 million for an 80 percent limited partnership interest in a portfolio from a major
financial institution in the United Kingdom. The portfolio is comprised of charged off consumer loans to residents of the United
Kingdom. NCO Portfolio’s 20 percent general partner in the transaction is NCO Financial Services (UK) Ltd. (“NCO (UK)”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of NCO Group. NCO (UK) is in the business of contingency fee based collections in the United Kingdom,
and also purchases accounts receivable in the United Kingdom. NCO (UK) has been servicing the portfolio since originally
outsourced by the seller and will continue to do so under the partnership agreement between the two companies. Under the
partnership agreement, NCO (UK) will receive a 15 percent preferred distribution for its services to the partnership, including the
ongoing servicing of the portfolio. Thereafter, collections are split 80 percent to NCO Portfolio and 20 percent to NCG (UK). The
operating results of the partnership have been included in NCO Portfolio’s consolidated results. NCO (UK)’s 20 percent interest is
deducted from eamings as a minority interest in consolidated earnings. The minority interest was $15,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Note J—-Employee Benefit Plans

i
Employees of NCO Portfolio are participants in NCO Group's savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the
- "Plan"). The Plan allows all eligible employees to defer up to 15 percent of their income on a pretax basis through contributions to the

25 percent of the first 6 percent of an employee's contribution.
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NCO PORTFOL!IO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Nogte K--Income Taxes

Income tax expense consisted of the following components (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Current: o B ==
FEACIAL oottt et et e ab e 3-- 3 (601) S -
-‘Total-current-tax benefit: ..occemimmn.. e T TR TS ST SIS T T e S s e e e —»A—um-géol Jo e e i - ——
Deferred:
FEEIAL.... e eeseeeoeeeeeeseseseserseeseses s sesseeseseseseoesesreoneesen 51,897 7,641 4,922
SHRLE. c1eveveeeeree st et sebe s ea bt ettt 217 805 347
Total deferred taX EXPENSE....ouvceeeiiicricciiir s 2,114 8,446 5.269
INCOME 1AX EXPENISE toveveirerininrermienreriteieenesreesreseeseseescsniee st ss e saeseesesns $2,1i4 $7.845 $5.268
The net deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following as of December 31, (amounts in thousands):
2001 2002
Deferred tax assets: —_
Net operating loss carryforward $33,720 $32,630
Other e 637 387
Total deferTed tAX SSEES ooviieiriee et iae sttt ettt sttt er e es et eeer e e s et e 34,357 33,017
Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchased accounts receivable ... 30,288 34,231
2,833 1,876
244 1,186
33,365 37,293
Net deferred tax (HabilitIes) @SSEIS......ceoeeriieirieiirr et et e § 992 3 (4.276)

A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to the effective rate is as follows:
For the years ended December 31,

009 2001 2002
U. S. Statutory iNCOME taX FALE........coceririvecierrrieerieonmesisercnsreiensis e srnes 35.0% 35.0% 350% ©
State taxes, net of federal benefit.........ccovvvevinnnnniiiniciis 2.5% 25% 2.5%
EAeCtiVE tAX TALC. cevterveerreeiteeeeeieeererereteeesteeestrerasesessesssesereessbseassessseasseenne 37.5% 37.5% ) 37.5%

As of December 31, 2002 NCO Portfolio had a federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $105.5 million, which fully
expires through 2021. Of this amount, $100.4 million existed as of the date of the Creditrust acquisition. Due to the Creditrust
ownership change in 2001, the use of the net operating loss carryforwards could be substantially curtailed by Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. The annual use of the net operating loss carryforwards is limited under this section and such limitation is
dependent on: i) the fair market value of Creditrust at the time of the ownership change; and ii) the net unrealized built-in gains of
Creditrust at the time of the ownership change, which are recognized within five years of the Merger date. Based on an analysis
performed by the Company, it is anticipated that $81.8 million of the Creditrust net operating loss will be available for utilization after
Section 382 limitations. Accordingly, a deferred tax asset based on this amount was recorded at the acquisition date being available to
- offset future reversing temporary differences and future taxable income. At year-end, this deferred tax asset was expected to be fully
.- utilized; to offset future reversing temporary differences, primarily relating to purchased accounts receivable. As of December 31,

‘;"’él‘s‘_sﬁfrﬁéﬂ:utilizaﬁon of net operating loss carryforwards from the Merger, offset by the deferred tax liabilities arising from book tax
g 1 i i

dlffﬁrgn‘c‘és on purchased accounts receivable, including the purchased accounts receivable acquired in the Merger.
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)

Note L--Stock Option Plan

In November 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Stock Option Plan (the "2000 Plan"). The 2000 Plan authorized 3.0 million shares
of incentive or non-qualified stock options. The 2000 Plan is administered by the Board of Directors and provides for the grant of
stock options to directors and to all eligible employees and consultants of NCO Portfolio, including executive officers. Options
granted under the plan vest over three years for employees, and one year for directors. The options expire no later than ten years from
the date of grant. All of the Company s stock optxons were 1ssuecl frorn the 2000 Plan '

At December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were 24, OOO NCO Group stock options outstanding issued prior to the Merger that have a
weighted average price of $26.58.

A summary of the stock option activity is as follows (amounts in thbusands, except per share amounts):

Weighted Average
Number of Exercise Price
Options Per Share
QOutstanding at January 1, 2001 ..c..cccooinrnviimniiii -- $--
GIantEa ...c.coveirircierirei ettt ettt e 581 6.92
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ......ccocooeiniiiiiere e 581 6.92
Granted ... e 12 7.10
FOrfeited.....c.oovevieecciciitin et _(2) 6.60
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 .........coccoconiviviiiiinccciii s 391 6.92
Stock options exercisable at year-end .........c.ccocovviiniviiiiiniins 234 $6.93

As of December 31, 2002, there were 591,000 stock options outstanding with a weighted average remaining life of 8.41 years, and
233,667 stock options exercisable with a weighted average remaining life of 8.36 years.

The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees"
("APB 25") and related interpretations. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the stock options equaled the fair value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant, no compensation cost was recognized. In accordance with SFAS 123, "Accounting for
-Stock-Based Compensation”, the Company does not recognize compensation cost based on the fair value of the options granted at
grant date. If the Company had elected to recognize compensation cost based on the fair value of the options granted at grant date, net
income and net income per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated in the following table for the periods
ending (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income — as TepOrted.......cccovvveevervnevveracerereerennns $3,523 $ 13,074 $ 8,780
Proforma compensation costs, net of taxes....... (29) (372) (730)
Net income -- pro forma ........ccocecerervvennnncrcrneeennes 3,494 $12.702 $ 8.050
Net income per share — as reported:
Basic and diluted.......c.cccevvennnncnnericenieniecnne $041 $1.02 $0.65
Net income per share -- pro forma:
Basic and diluted........c.coccvrnriinnnnicrreen 30.41 $0.99 - $0.59
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Note L--Stock and Option Plans (Continued)

The estimated weighted average, grant date fair values of the options granted during the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002 were $10.81, $4.40 and $4.40, respectively. All stock options granted were at the fair market value of the stock on the grant
date. The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the
following assumptions for grants on a weighted average basis is as follows:

For the yéars ended December 31,

o i S~ 200 0 0000 0 2002
VOlatility faCtOT ...cvcverrciereeerreseesensssreesssseseserseranes . 52.96% 73.90% 63.80%
RiSK-fTee INTEIESt TATE...v.vevevereeeeeereeerereeeveresesseesseres % 5.90% 4.50% 4,50%
Expected life in years. ....co.oocoerieeicnnnenicnsinennnienns 325 5.00 5.00
Dividend yield. .....ccvuverecinnirnniarniicirinreeseiesenane None None None
FOrfeitire Tate.........ovveerrriererrrnerasanessassssesseassaesenes 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Note M--Supplemental Cash Flows Information

The following are supplemental disclosures of cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(amounts in thousands):

2000 2001 2002
Cash paid fOr INLETESE .....c.ocevermrercrerererirrressiseseeseerereesssesessresessiesens $ 1,334 $ 7,846 $ 7,455

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Deferred portion of purchased accounts receivable............. $ - 3 -- $2,026
Common stock issued for Creditrust acquisition ..........c...... $ - $ 24,058 $ -
Fair value of assets acquired in merger...........ccvveeveerevernnns $ - $ 123978 $ -
Liabilities assumed in METZET ......ccovevrveermereeicrirernrernrecnens $ - $ 109,394 8 -

Note N--Supplementary Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following tables represent selected quarterly financial information for the three months ended (amounts in thousands, except per
share amounts):

March 31, June 30, ‘September 30, December 31,
2001 2001 2001 2001
Revenue $ 12,618 $17.916 $ 16,189 $ 16,206
Income from operations - 6,232 8,490 6,509 7,387
Net income 2,931 3,923 2,703 3,517
Basic and diluted net income per share $0.27 $0.29 $0.20 $0.26
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2002 2002 2002 2002
_ Revenue $ 16,270 $ 14,108 $ 16,338 $ 16,663
! Income from operations 5,978 4213 5,887 5,186
i Net income 2,651 1,727 2,424 : 1,978
; Basic and diluted net income per share $0.20 $0.13 $0.18 $0.15

i
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NCO PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Nete O —impact of Proposed Accounting Pronouncements

FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others”

[n November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor’s
. Accounting and Disclosure-Requirements-for Guarantees, Including-Indirect Guarantees of Indebtednessof Others.”~ FIN 25 elaborates
on the disclosures required by guarantors in its interim and annual financial statements. FIN 45 also requires a guarantor to recognize a
liability at the date of inception for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee. The disclosure requirements are
effective for periods ending after December 15, 2002. The initial retognition and measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45, and do not believe the
adoption of the recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 will have a material impact on the Company’s financial position and
results of operations.

FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN” 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. The objective of
FIN 46 is to improve financial reporting by companies involved with variable interest entities. FIN 46 defines variable interest entities
and requires that variable interest entities be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss
from the variable interest entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. The disclosure
requirements are effective for periods ending after December 15, 2002. The consolidation requirements apply immediately to variable
interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and apply to existing variable interest entities in the first fiscal year or interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003. We adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 46, and do not believe the adoption of FIN 46 will
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

Accounting for Certain Purchased Loans or Debt Securities (formerly known as Discounts Related to Credit Quality) (Exposure
Draft—December 1998)

The exposure draft applies to all companies that acquire loans for which it is probable at the acquisition date that all contractual
amounts due under the acquired loans will not be collected. The proposal addresses accounting for differences between contractual
and expected future cash flows from an investor's initial investment in certain loans when such differences are attributable, in part, to
credit quality. The scope also includes such loans acquired in purchased business combinations. If adopted, the proposed SOP would
supersede Practice Bulletin 6, Amortization of Discounts on Certain Acquired Loans. In Juri€ 2001, the FASB cleared the SOP for
issuance subject to minor editorial changes and planed to issue a final SOP in early 2002. The SOP has not yet been issued.

The proposed SOP would limit the revenue that may be accrued to the excess of the estimate of expected future cash flows over the
portfolio's initial cost of accounts receivable acquired. The proposed SOP would require that the excess of the contractual cash flows
over expected future cash flows not be recognized as an adjustment of revenue, expense or on the balance sheet. The proposed SOP
would freeze the IRR originally estimated when the accounts receivable are purchased for subsequent impairment testing. Rather than
lower the estimated IRR if the original collection estimates are not received, the carrying value of a portfolio would be written down
to maintain the original IRR. Increases in expected future cash flows would be recognized prospectively through adjustment of the
IRR over a portfolio's remaining life. The exposure draft provides that previously issued annual financial statements would not need to
be restated. Until final issuance of this SOP, we cannot ascertain its effect on our reporting.
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Item 0. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

PART III
Item 10, Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive information statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be filed in accordance with General Instructions G(3) to the Annual Report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive information’ statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be filed in accordance with General Instructions G(3) to the Annual Report

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information under this Item, other than the equity compensation plan information provided below, is incorporated by reference from
the Company's definitive information statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed in accordance with
General Instructions G(3) to the Annual Report.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table details information regarding the Company’s existing equity compensation plan as of December 31, 2002
(amounts in thousands, except for exercise price):

(©)
Number of securities
(a) (b) remaining available
Number of securities Weighted-average for future issuance
to be issued upon exercise price of under equity
exercise of outstanding compensation plans
outstanding options, options, warrants  (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders.......... 591 $692 _ 2,409
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders... -- -- ) --
5 1] -1 B OO OO OO TP O PRSP 591 6.92 2,409

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Incorporated by reference from the Company's definitive information statement relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be filed in accordance with General Instructions G(3) to the Annual Report.
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Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Quarterly evaluation of our Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. Within the 90 days prior to the date of this Annual Report, -
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our "disclosure controls and procedures” ("Disclosure Controls"). Tl
evaluation ("Controls Evaluation") was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Ch
Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO").

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls. Qur management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosu
Controls or our "internal controls and procedures for financial reporting" ("Internal Controls™) will prevent all error and all fraud.
control system, no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that t the 1e abjectives.
the control system-are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and t
benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluatic
of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control ié_s,ues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have be
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns c:
occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, 1
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in pa
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes
conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cos
effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Conclusions. Based upon the Controls Evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that, to the best of their knowledge and subje
to the limitations noted above, the Disclosure Controls are effective to timely alert management to material information relating to t
during the period when our periodic reports are being prepared.

In accordance with SEC requirements, the CEO and CFO note that, to the best of their knowledge, since the date of the Contro.
Evaluation to the date of this Annual Report, there have been no significant changes in Internal Controls or in other factors that coul
significantly affect Internal Controls, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a)}(1)  The following consolidated financial statements of NCO Portfolic Management, Inc. and it subsidiaries are included

in Item &:

Report of Independent Auditors 745
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 27
Consolidated Staten_@nt,s gfwlrpcgmnev fc_>_r» _eqp}_l pf_the three years in o )

B ~ " the period ended December 31, 2002 o o D T
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for é§ch of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 28
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2002 36
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 31

(a)(2)  No financial statement schedules for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 are required to be filed a3 paz of
this Annual Report.

(a)(3)  List of Exhibits filed in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K. The following exhibits are incorporated by
reference in, or filed with, this Annual Report:

Exhibit No, Document
2.1 Second Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of September 28, 200

of Creditrust Corporation with and into NCO Portfolio Funding, Inc. (7)

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. (1)

32 By-Laws of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. (1)

4.1 Senior Secured Bridge Note dated August 2, 1999, executed by Creditrust SPV 922, LLC, {5}

42 Reference is being made to the form of Promissory Note in Exhibit 10. 38

43 Reference is being made to the form of Promissory Note in Exhibit 10. 45

4.4 Reference is being made to the form of Promissory Note in Exhibit 10. 48

10.1 Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1998, by and among Creditrust Funding § LLC,
Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, Creditrust Corporation and Asset Cuaranty Insurance
Company. (2)

Amendment No. 1 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 16, 1599, by and among
Creditrust Funding I LLC, as issuer, Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backur
servicer, Creditrust Corporation, as servicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, as note insurer. {3}

Amendment No. 2 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of March 15, 1999, by and among Creditius:
"Funding I LLC, as issuer, Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backup servicer,
Creditriist Corporation, as servicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, 2s note insurer. (3}

. b
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z Agreement, dated as of December 31, 1999, by and amor
lorwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backu
srvicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, as note insurer. {4)

0.4

niure and Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 29, 2000 by and amon
55 issuer, Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backu
ration, #s servicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, as note insurer. (4)

Amendment No.
Creditrust Fundi

Ser v’lLex, Credit

—
<«
M

0.6 Amendment No. 5 to Indesiure and Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Creditru:
Fending {, LLC, Wells Eglgo Pank Minnesota, National Association, Asset Guaranty Insurance Compan
Wells Farge Bank dMimnesota, Mational A ';\I\.lam.fjn and NCQ Financial Systems Inc. (10)

10.7 Indenture and Servicing \g cement, dated as of December 29, 1998, by and among Creditrust SPV98-2, LL(
Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, Creditrust Corporation and Asset Guaranty Insuranc
Company. {3} ’

10.8 Amendment No. i to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 16, 1999, by and amon
Creditrust SPV58-2, LLC, as issuer, Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backu
servicer, Creditrust Corporation, as servicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, as note insurer. (3)

,._.
©
‘o

Amendment No. 2 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1999, by and among Creditru:
SPV98-2, LLC, as issuer, Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backup service
Creditrust Corporation, as servicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, as note insurer. (4)

10.10 Amendment Ne. 3 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of December 31, 1999, by and amon
Creditrust SPV98-2, LLC, issuer, Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and as backu
servicer, Creditrust Corporation, as servicer, and Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, as note insurer. (4)

10.11 Amendment No. 4 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Creditrus
SPV98-2, LLC, Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, Naticnal Association, Asset Guaranty Insurance Company, Well
Fargo Bank Minnesota, Nationa! Association and NCO Financial Systems, Inc. (10)

10.12 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Credittust SPV98-2, LLC, dated as of December 29, 1998. (3)

10.13 Bridge Loan Agreement dated as of August 2, 1999 among dated as of August 2, 1999 among Creditrust SPY
99-2, LLC, Creditrust SPV §9-2 Capital, Inc., Creditrust Corporation, the Lenders named therein, and Norwes
Bank Minnesota, National Association. (5}

10.14 Amendment No. 1 to Bridge Loan Agreement dated as of August 2, 1999 among Creditrust SPV99-2, LLC
CRDT SPV99-2 Capital Inc., Creditrust Corporation, the lenders named therein and Norwest Bank Minnesotz
National Association. (6}

10.15 Amendment No. 2 to Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2001, among Creditrust SPV99-.
Capital, Inc., CRDT SPV99-2 Capital, Inc., the lenders named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A

(10)

10.16 Amended and Restated Limiied Liability Company Agreement of Creditrust SPV99-2, LLC dated as of Marc]
1, 2000. (7)
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10.17 Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of August 31, 1999, by and among Creditrust SPV99-1, LLC,
Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, and Creditrust Corporation (5)

10.18 = Amendment No. 1 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2001, among Creditrust SPV
99-1, Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association and NCO Financial Systems, Inc. (10)

10.19 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Creditrust SPV99-1, LLC, dated as of August 31, 1999. (5)

10.20 Amendment No. [ to Limited Liability Company Agreement of Creditrust SPV99-1, LLC, dated as of February
14, 2001, between Creditrust Corporation and GSS Holdings I, Inc. (10)

~==10:21-—- - -~ - Creditrust Corporation Fifth- Amended Plan of ReorganizationUnder-Chapter—11-Bankruptcy dated December—

21, 2000. (7)

10.22 Fifth Amended Disclosure Statement of Creditméi_ Corporation dated December 21, 2000. (7)

10.23 Independent Contractor Agreement between NCO Portfolio Funding, Inc. and Joseph K. Rensin. (8)

10.24 Order Confirming Fifth Amended Plan of Reorganization (with Technical Amendments) dated December 21,
2000. (10)

10.25 Amendment No. 1 to Limited Liability Company Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2001, between Creditrust
Corporation and GSS Holdings 11, Inc. (10)

10.26 Amendment No. 1 to Limited Liability Company Agreement of Creditrust Funding I, LLC, dated as of February
20, 2001, between Creditrust Corporation and GSS Holdings II, Inc. (10)

10.27 Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2001, between Creditrust Corporation and NCO Financial
Systems, Inc. (10)

10.28 Servicing Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Creditrust SPV99-2, LLC, NCO Financial Systems,
Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank. (10)

10.29 Subscription Agreement between NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. and Joseph K. Rensin. (10)

10.30 Subscription Agreement between NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. and Michael J. Barrist. (10)

10.31 Credit Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2001, between NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. and NCO Group,
Inc. (10)

10.32 NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan. (9) (10)

10.33 Employment Agreement dated February 20, 2001 by and between NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. and

Michael B. Meringolo. (9) (11)
10.34 Limited Liability Agreement of InoVision-MEDCLR-NCOP Ventures, L.L.C. (11)

Limited Liability Agreement of InoVision-MEDCLR-NCOP-F, L.L.C. (11)

Limited Liability Agreement of InoVision-MECLR-NCOP-NF, L.L.C. (11)
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10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

1041

10.42

1043

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

1048

10.49

211

23.1

99.1

Exclusivity Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Marlin Integrated Capital Holding Corporatior
NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. NCO Group, Inc. (11)

Credit Agreement by and between InoVision-MEDCLR-NCOP-F, L.L.C. as  Borrower and CFSC Capital Cort
XXXI1V, as Lender dated as of March 9, 2001 (11)

Employment Agreement dated February 20, 2001 by and between NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. an
Michael J. Barrist (9) (12)

Employment Agreement dated February 20, 2001 by and between NCO Portfolxo Management, Inc. an
Richard J. Palmer (9) (12)

Employment Agreement dated February 20 2001 by and between NCO Portfolio Management Inc. and Joshu
Gindin (9) (12)

Employment Agreement dated February 20; 2001 by and between NCO Portfolio Management, Inc. and Steve
L. Winokur (9) (12)

Amendment No. 5 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement (Series 98-2) Creditrust SPV 98-2, LLC, as Issuer an
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee and Backup Servicer and Radian Asse
Assurance Inc. (fk/a Asset Guaranty Insurance Company), as Note Insurer and NCO Financial Systems, Inc. a
Successor Servicer Dated June 29, 2002. (13)

Amendment No. 6 to Indenture and Servicing Agreement (Warehouse Facility) Creditrust Funding I, LLC, a
Issuer and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee and Backup Servicer and Radia:
Asset Assurance Inc. (f’k/a Asset Guaranty Insurance Company), as Note Insurer and NCO Financial Systems
Inc. as Successor Servicer Dated June 29, 2002. (13)

Credit Agreement by and between NCOP Lakes, Inc. as Borrower and CFSC Capital Corp. XXXIV as Lende
dated as of August 19, 2002. (13)

Exclusivity Agreement related to Credit Agreement between NCOP Lakes, Inc. (the Borrower) and CFS(
Capital Corp. XXXIV (the Lender) dated as of August 19, 2002. (13)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of November 1, 2002, by and between NCO Portfolic
Management, Inc. (the "Borrower") and NCO Group, Inc. (the "Lender"). (13)

Credit Agreement by and between NCOP Capital, Inc. as Borrower and CFSC Capital Corp. XXXIV as Lende:
dated as of November 26, 2002. (14)

Amendment No.1 to Servicing Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2002, entered into by and between NCC
Portfolio Management, Inc. (as successor by Merger to Creditrust Corporation), for itself and as the sole owne
of Creditrust SPV2, LLC, as owner and NCO Financial Systems, Inc., as servicer. (14)

List of Subsidiaries. (14)

Consent of Independent Auditors (14)

Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 o
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (14)

Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (14)
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(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 22, 2001.

(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1998
and incorporated herein by reference. _

(3) Previously filed -as an exhibit to Creditrust's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-70845) and incorporated herein by
reference.

(4) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 and mcorporated
herein by reference.

" (5) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Quarterly Report on i Forri 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999 and
incorporated herein by reference. A portion of this exhibit has been omitted based upon a request for confidential treatment.

(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Quarterly Report’:"{on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 and incorporated
herein by reference.

(8) Previously filed as an exhibit to Creditrust's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(9) Indicates management agreement or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(10) Previously filed as an exhibit to NCO Portfolio's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(11) Previously filed as an exhibit to NCO Portfolio’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(12) Previously filed as an exhibit to NCO Portfolio’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(13) Previously filed as an exhibit to NCO Portfolio’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(14) Filed herewith.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

NCO Portfolio filed an 8-K on October 4, 2002, Item 7 " Financial Statements and Exhibits" and Item 9 “Regulation FD Disclosures™.
NCO Portfolio filed an 8-K on November 20, 2002, Item 7 " Financial Statements and Exhibits" and Item 9 ‘“Regulation FD

Disclosures™.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this repo:
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Baltimore, State of Maryland, on March 1:

2003.

NCO Portfolio Management, Inc.

By: /s/f MICHAEL J. BARRIST

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and President

o e e e

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf ¢

the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ Michael J. Barrist
Michael J. Barrist

/s/ Richard J. Palmer
Richard J. Palmer

/s/ James D. Rosener
James D. Rosener

{s/ James T. Hunter
James T. Hunter

/s/ Jeffrey A. Schraeder
Jeffrey A. Schraeder

/s/ Alan D. Scheinkman
Alan D. Scheinkman

*

Title

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and President

(Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 13, 2003

March 13, 2003

March 13, 2003

March 13, 2003

March 13, 2003

March 13, 2003




CERTIFICATIONS

1, Michael J. Barrist, Chief Executive Officer of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc., certify that:

[T

4.

U

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowiedge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The Tegistrant's other cértifying officer and T are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and ™
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known’to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

h. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the fling date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date,

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and '

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and T have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes
in infernal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 13, 2003

/s/ MICHAEL J. BARRIST

Michael J. Barrist
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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I, Richard J. Palmer, Chief Financial Officer of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc., certify that: _

—

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NCO Portfolio Management, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report; ) B

-— =~ - 4, - - The registrant's other certifying officét and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made khown to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;
b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and
c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes

in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 13, 2003

/s/ RICHARD J. PALMER

Richard J. Palmer
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

54




Directors

Michael J. Barrist

Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive
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Pepper Hamilton LLP
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